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RZE—\F+_A=t—0B HERRNEERRAFAGLEREEZEFTHARAITUARANMEBECEER
BERINAIAAR —FRBIEZRBEAL

B RATHAE N AT R H A8 B A B IR 6 5 48 BA B 1 2 R 2 e it
EERFATZHEH

R-Z—N\F+-A=+—8 FATNEERTRERNFDAREIEEE(THRESRAE G (F5%
PIE6715) ([ % R 5 16 51 ) EXVER) 2 1D - IR RAE 5 B ()R IR 5 R0 XV H E7RS
AHENEERT LB BEREESR BRI ERECREFRR ARG 2RERAR) KA
AKRRIREE SRR E50E 7B 2 BLM: Ri)RBLHRTAEFRITBFZBOIEETR (F
TR ERME AR R A2 AR T

1.

RROBREBRBZIZE
EEXRAT
HMBTRBZ
BAESE
(RSN EnBEEAREAZEA 207,968,130 #it1) 73.41%
fREZ FaEXmA 207,871,528 ##2) 73.37%
HiaFt - Beiki+ ([BL )R ATESE £207,9681308% A A R B 15 R #E A % ¢ ()F 22 T8 A4 596,6020% AR A : (i)

Ko Bee Limited ([Ko Bee) # 5205,485,528 X A R A1 A% 17 * MKo BeeZ & MBI AR EE T (ZEFTNEHAE - B
T EBZIEFEZ T A i) Ko Bee® & i B 2 A & Full Match Limited ([Full Match]) #5 A52,386,000/% &R 2 & f% {5 ©

Biito - PRE:Z /A (TBR/NE IR A 1E207,871,528 A A B RO R A R - R/NEAZERZZE A
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2. ESRHEBZEEZER

HEEEZE Fi iz 4 8B R E 5l FiRESE
B& Ik Ko Bee Limited BEEXZ@m A 10% 3 i A% 100% (#it3)
REZ Ko Bee Limited EEE N 108 A A 1009 ##3)
HE IR Full Match Limited REHEEER R 1REERK 1009% ##9

AT I 3¢
SEE X m

REZ Full Match Limited REGEERER R 1REBER 100% ##3
EREXEA

153 KoBeez 2B EITRAMZETEIA © Ful Matchz 2 B D BT A HKo Bee 5 - BT RRNEHAZERZE R
Ao

BREXFABEEEN R-E-\Ft_A=1+—HB ARAEZERTHRARMERNARF R ERABEE(EER
EHLHBERGIEXVED) 2B D HEROEESTERENREZE SN AEERIEXVE BTSN HAMNGAR
AMBERMA(BRREESEAEERNBRGIREFXUAR/ER 2 LAR) (i) BL ARNRRIRIEE T
N EGRAIEI2GEMEFE 2B LM RNRFFETANEAMEARRMBR A2 EMERIOXR ©

EFERTRRFLATNRGRERARGZIEZRRE
R-ZB—N\F+=A=+—B UWFALEAAEFRTRARBINRARATRG RBBRG R EEARATLA
IR 5 I 1 ) SR 006HE FT I B 2 B AR M 0 2 6% B HHE RS AR

1. KA
BEREZE 8] B &8 BREBAESE
Century Pine (PTC) Limited {255 X7 A 207,871,528 #1249 73.37%
Ko Bee Limited En#EEAR 207,871,528 #i124) 73.37%

XEFAEER

Htata : Ko Bee s #% B Century Pine (PTC) Limited {fE A X T R 2 RIEKE (BEFARRABNTEENMRNE) 2 ZFEANRZE
A e
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R FEEF A= HIFAZ EEY) %

BEEEROB FREEGES

(CFHAR)

& 85 A0 245100 100% % RHRZY
B R & 28 = H385R

2 #5028 —Midtown 218,000 100% @3 REIRK
=B iR 8 B R 12295
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

3 7. 4% B e

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Soundwiill
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 128 to 288, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

FSETEIR

Valuation of investment properties

REMEME

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the inherent level of complex and subjective
judgements and estimates required in determining the fair values.

The Group’s investment property portfolio comprises retail,
commercial, industrial and residential properties located in Hong
Kong and is stated at fair value of HK$20,439,237,000, accounting
for approximately 88% of the Group’s total assets as at 31 December
2018 with a net fair value loss on investment properties of
HK$100,431,000 recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended as
disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

BB EMEEEERBEREFFTR  REEE
SNEMER  YHREDEBHE KRG -

ERFER

EEENEEMEACPEEUREBNTE BmE TEREE
Y% - TR A F BB #20,439,237,000THEE - 1 EEER =
—N\E+-A=+—HHNBEELSS%  KEWEATFEEBREF
KB #100,431,000 L ERE EZZ B L FEMNGEEZ R EMEME
IWARAER(RERE M REM F17)
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMEESPEERAREFETENSTX

Qur procedures in relation to the valuation of
investment properties included:

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and
objectivity of the Valuer and obtaining an
understanding of the Valuer’s scope of work
and their terms of engagement;

° Evaluating the appropriateness of the
Valuer’s valuation approaches to assess if
they meet the requirements of the HKFRSs
and industry norms;

BMEREMELEETNEFBE:

o FIAMEERMER BRHIRFERIE AT
FRAEER A TR E R R IR

o HEMEMZEENAZEEE AN
HELGN B AMBHRELRRITRED
MR E
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Key audit matter (Continued)
FAEEtEIE(E)

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

REMEGEGER

The Group’s investment properties are measured using the fair value
model based on a valuation performed by an independent qualified
professional valuer (the “Valuer”). As disclosed in notes 5 and 17 to
the consolidated financial statements, in determining the fair values of
the Group’s completed investment properties, the Valuer has applied
income capitalisation method or direct comparison method, as
appropriate, for respective properties, which involves, inter-alia,
certain estimates, including appropriate capitalisation rates,
reversionary rental value and market transactions of comparable
properties, as appropriate; whereas, in determining the fair values of
the Group’s investment properties under re-development, the Valuer
has applied residual method which is dependent on the estimated
gross development value, estimated cost of development and
allowance of profit that duly reflected developer’s risk associated with
the development.

BERENRENEDRBE LS EREXGEM((HEM)ET
MEE  FAXFERNAGE - BNES M ERKRMESRI7ATHR
B OREE EREEERREVEZATER  GEMDRS
MEERNBREABABENMOEHERLEL - B R(E
TERFB)EEENMEE ERBERATLBYEZTERS @R
ERBAME)2E T  -NEE BEXKEZERREVMER
HEMEEARERE  ZHEBRR G EREE  BAERX
AR ZRRRERAEZREREE BRSNS -
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(Continued)
BHESAPEEFAREASTENSR (@)

o Challenging the reasonableness of the key
assumptions and appropriateness of
valuation models applied based on available
market data and our knowledge of the
property industry and whether the
assumptions and methodologies are
consistent with those used in prior year;

° Assessing the reasonableness of key inputs
used in the valuation, on a sample basis, by
checking to the publicly available information
on comparable market transactions,
comparing rental income, terms of existing
leases to the existing lease summary of the
Group and evaluating whether capitalisation
rates adopted are comparable to market;

o Evaluating whether the estimated cost of
development to completion and the
allowance of profit for developer used are
comparable to market; and

° Checking arithmetical accuracy of
calculations.

s REMEHHBBEEERMABVEITENR
B B ETERRNEBEERMEAMGE
BRNEEN UNEBREBRENDERS
EREFREMAEMRNT:

s  BEERBEAMAGHNALEMSERIZER
HHESWARRAEEGRRE SEER
EHEBEFELER  URIEAMEANE
AMett X B RETIFRE - BT HEE
HEANETIEHEHATESE:

e HEMHERETINANREREMANH
A BEEREMBEE R

s REEMAEELEMEER -
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Key audit matter (Continued)
FRREFFEEGE

Assessment of the net realisable values
of properties for sale

AR EMEZTRIREFEE

We identified the assessment of the net realisable values of the
Group’s properties for sale (the “PFS”) as a key audit matter due to
the subjective management judgements and estimates involved in the
determination of the net realisable value (the “NRV”) of the PFS.

As disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had PFS of HK$954,855,000 as at 31 December 2018. The
Group’s assessment of the carrying values of PFS, being the lower of
cost and NRYV, takes into account the selling price ultimately
expected to be realised, the estimated costs to completion of the
PFS and costs necessary to make the sale.

The management of the Group determines the estimated selling price
of the PFS with reference to prevailing market data on most recent
sale transactions of similar properties or market valuation reports
available from independent qualified professional valuers, which
takes into account the prevailing real estate market conditions.

Based on the management estimation of the NRV of the PFS and
after taking into consideration the estimated costs to completion of
the PFS and costs necessary to make the sale, no write-down of PFS
was considered necessary for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(Continued)
BHESHAPEEA#EAETENIXE)

Our procedures in relation to the assessment of
the net realisable values of the PFS included:

° Assessing the reasonableness of the
estimated selling price of the PFS estimated
by the management or independent qualified
professional valuers, on a sample basis, by
comparing the estimated selling prices to the
market prices achieved in the same projects
or comparable properties, based on our
knowledge of the Group’s business and the
real estate industry; and

° Assessing the reasonableness of the
estimated cost to completion of the PFS
estimated by the management, on a sample
basis, by comparing it to the Group’s
development budget and the actual
development cost of similar properties
recently completed by the Group and by
checking the actual cost incurred to date to
construction contracts and other relevant
documents.

BZAFEGFEDENAIER FERETHRF
B

e REEMNY EKEXBLREHETEN
R BRLBGAEERER—HBNA
LB R PTE B TE - kR h IR
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Chau Chi Ka.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A 7 18 A S 3L b 2 v WC A R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8l 2 —FE —/\F+ A=+ —HIU FE

2018 2017
—EF—N\E —T—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B &t BETR BT T
Revenue W &=
Revenue from goods and services B o R AR W s 440,358 1,716,996
Rental income He A 540,040 508,000
Total revenue FER g 6 980,398 2,224,996
Cost of sales 5 & AR (251,303) (1,213,488)
Gross profit EH 729,095 1,011,508
Other income EH A 7 47,619 110,152
Selling expenses HEEBER (11,935) (63,672)
Administrative expenses THEA (142,490) (206,149)
Other gains and losses Hph s K &5 18 - (2,191)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEM B AR 2 W~
(B#H) 39 235,812 (50,167)
Net fair value (loss)/gain on investment & &) 2 /) 2 4%
properties/properties transfer RNFEE(ER)/ K FE 17 (101,018) 528,792
Finance costs LR 9 (37,815) (25,503)
Profit before income tax expense R PT 45 154 A 2 A1 s 10 719,268 1,302,770
Income tax expense BT 1S ¢ F 2 13 (54,414) (101,174)
Profit for the year FE R 664,854 1,201,596
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BiA AR M A A A R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8l 2 = F —/\iF +=H =+ —HIL F &

2018 2017
—E-N\EF — = tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ks BETR BT
Other comprehensive (expense)/ Hih2mBEZ) WA
income, net of tax N IEE 14
Item that will not be reclassified to HUTIEL TS EH 7 FEF)
profit or loss: Bz
Deficit on revaluation of buildings, EFEMHEE -
net of deferred tax BRI RE Y IE 14 (400) (1,458)
Itern that may be reclassified KUTIHAAZERBEED 7
subsequently to profit or loss: Bz -
Exchange (loss)/gain on translation of ~ B EH/EINEE 2
foreign operations 5 (E58), Wi (33,176) 31,079
Other comprehensive (expense)/income R H b & & (Fi%),/
for the year, net of tax WA BRI R (33,576) 29,621
Total comprehensive income FREZEKA
for the year 631,278 1,231,217
Profit/(loss) for the year FEiEEREF(B5E) :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZEWN 671,592 1,200,781
Non-controlling interests FEIE R R = (6,738) 815
664,854 1,201,596
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

AR AR A MO AL BT &

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8t 2 =L —/\F + = A=+ —HI F &

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —T—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ks BETT ok e
Total comprehensive income/ FEIEERE2TSRN
(expense) for the year (BX):
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRAREAA 639,739 1,227,041
Non-controlling interests eV IR = (8,461) 4,176
631,278 1,231,217
Earnings per share =1 F 16
Basic BN HK$#E#52.3750  HK$HE #4.247T
Diluted e N/AFTER  HK$E 4247
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

3 B SR Dl &

As at 31 December 2018 R—ZF—/\F+_-H=+—H

2018 2017
—E-)N\E —E—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B &t BETRT BT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERARE
Non-current assets ERHEE
Investment properties HEMHE 17 20,439,237 19,497,324
Property, plant and equipment W - WENE 18 127,218 107,460
Properties held for development FERWE 19 17,305 18,434
Deposits paid for acquisition of WiEMx 2 B2
properties 63,552 56,945
Loan receivables fE W E 21 32,756 36,894
Total non-current assets WIERENE E 20,680,068 19,717,057
Current assets RBEE
Properties for sale HEME 20 954,855 1,407,876
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E A fE Gk IR 21 141,192 113,804
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFETFAER 22
profit or loss (“FVTPL?) (B RFEFAEREDZ
WBEE 92,443 —
Structured bank deposits HERITERITER 22 - 106,559
Bank deposits at escrow account REBEERPZHBITER 23 - 2,231
Restricted bank deposits SRR BIEITIER 24 74,568 57,993
Short-term bank deposits MHERITER 24 575,000 480,055
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEYD 24 186,238 666,895
2,024,296 2,835,413
Assets classified as held for sale NERFECZE 38 420,000 —
Total current assets BREEE 2,444,296 2,835,413
Current liabilities RENEE
Trade and other payables 5 & Hqth E FRIE 25 619,975 501,631
Contract liabilities aHBE 26 154,469 —
Deposits received in advance FEWETS 26 - 292,733
Borrowings BE 27 1,067,765 1,528,120
Provision for income tax TS T & 213,381 228152
Total current liabilities R ARG 2,055,590 2,550,636
Net current assets BREBEE 388,706 284,777
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SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
o BRIV

As at 31 December 2018 R —ZF—\F+_-H=+—H

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

2018 2017
—E-)N\E —E—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
K aF BT T BT T
Total assets less current liabilities @& ERBRIBEE 21,068,774 20,001,834
Non-current liabilities EREFERE
Borrowings BE 27 495,023 —
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIBEE 28 117,532 107,886
Total non-current liabilities BWIERBBEE 612,555 107,886
Net assets FEE 20,456,219 19,893,948
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the AXAT]HEH A
Company FE1LHE ==
Share capital % A< 29 28,331 28,331
Reserves 1 30 20,412,833 19,829,756
20,441,164 19,858,087
Non-controlling interests FEIERRELS 36 15,055 35,861
Total equity HEREE 20,456,219 19,893,948

The consolidated financial statements on pages 128 to 288 are authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21 March

2019 and are signed on behalf by:

F12BEBA LKAV BREN_Z-NF-_A_T HEEFTSHRENE THAUTEETK/EE:

Foo Kam Chu Grace
&z

Director

EF

Chan Wai Ling

REF

Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
i B AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8l 2 —FE —/\F+ A=+ —HI FE

2018 2017
—E-N\FE —tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
bt EETRT BT T
Operating activities EEER
Profit before income tax expense B P45 5% B9 < A& A 719,268 1,302,770
Adjustments for: BT & EEH 78 2 -
Other interest income Hth F8 U A (17,695) (11,116)
Interest income from financial assets at & A FEFTAB & 2 M7
FVTPL BEZMBHEA (5,232) —
Interest income from loan receivables JE W B SR B A (1,021) (721)
Interest expenses FEXH 37,815 25,503
Depreciation of property, mE - - BEREBITE
plant and equipment 2,987 2,250
Amortisation of properties FEEMEEN
held for development 546 413
Impairment loss on trade receivables BHRWRIBREERE - 2,191
Net fair value loss/(gain) on investment BREME  MEEE
properties/properties transfer NEEEBE () FE 17 101,018 (528,792)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARZ (W) /B 39 (235,812) 50,167
Loss on disposal of AFS financial assets ~ H & A HEM K EE 2
18 - 10
Operating profit before working EEESHER 8L T
capital changes 601,874 842,675
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other B 5 N E b Y E (380) /
receivables B (23,168) 19,972
Decrease in properties for sale FEMERD 99,997 936,235
Decrease in bank deposits at escrow REERP 2 RITHFZOR D
account 2,231 48,890
(Increase)/decrease in restricted bank ZBR&IRITFRCEM),
deposits B (16,575) 9,954
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 & H At BB 5B AN 51,334 13,323
Decrease in contract liabilities EHEERD (138,264) —

Decrease in deposits received in advance T8 Uk 5T & & =

(571,724)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8t 2 =L —/\F + = A=+ —HI F &

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
bt BETT BT T
Net cash generated from operations XK ESFR 577,429 1,299,325
Income tax paid EAATEH (59,318) (58,594)
Net cash generated from operating MERBIFH & FEE
activities 518,111 1,240,731
Investing activities B’EFH
Placement of structured bank deposits GFRERBERITER - (165,934)
Withdrawal of structured bank deposits ~ $2EU & & 14 SR 1715 3% - 59,375
Purchases of financial assets at FVTPL ~ BEE R QA F{EFARBR Z
& E (160,891) —
Proceed from disposal of financial assets HEZ A FEFAEBRE Z
at FVTPL MBEEMGSIHIE 175,007 -
Placement of short-term bank deposits 17 /52 Ef SR 17 17 3¢ (5,669,596) (1,273,655)
Withdrawal of short-term bank deposits 2 BU A2 HR SR 1717 3K 5,574,651 1,781,827
Advance to loan receivables JE U B TR R (5,922) (31,307)
Repayment from loan receivables FE U B KB 6,464 806
Additions to property, plant and EADE - BEREE
equipment (23,563) (372
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BERZEZ
plant and equipment G 289 1,067
Deposits paid for acquisitions of WEWEZEMNET 2
properties (63,552) (56,945)
Payment to acquire investment properties W B 1% & ¥ ¥ 2 3% (1,146,830) (1,294,904)
Net cash inflows from disposal of HEMBAR ZE SR
subsidiaries R 39 524,262 388,247
Purchase of net assets, WHFEE  MBRMERE
net of cash acquired 40 (214,123) —
Interest received from loan receivables e E R E U A 1,021 721
Interest received from financial assets at & A FEFF A B 2 B 15
FVTPL BE 2D WHE 5,232 -
Other interest received Hth B KA B 17,695 11,116
Deposits received on disposal of HENBAR 2B WES
subsidiaries 38 55,353 —

Net cash used in investing activities REZBFHH 2 FHE (924,503) (579,958)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8l 2 = F —/\iF +=H =+ —HIL F &

2018 2017
—B-0\E “E—+tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
bt EETRT BT T
Financing activities Bl & & B
Repayments of bank loans BERITEX (1,037,332) (366,100)
Bank loans raised EERITER 1,072,000 200,000
Distributions to non-controlling DIERTHEBREZ
shareholders of subsidiaries JEERE AR R (12,345) —
Interest paid EAH A (37,815) (25,503)
Final and special dividends paid BT AR ER R B B (56,662) (339,970)
Net cash used in financing activities BETETHE 2 FE (72,154) (531,573)
(Decrease)/increase in cashandcash & RIFLZBYMR L)/
equivalents ¥ n (478,546) 129,200
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 R—A—BZzHRER
January HeZEY 666,895 536,201
Effect of foreign exchange rate ExgaHueE  $H
changes, net (2,111) 1,494
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 R+-—A=+—HBzH&R
December Ha%EYD 186,238 666,895
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A 17 HE o 52 B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt = —F —/\F+ - A=+ —HI F&

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
AATEAANEILELS

Capital

Share Share redemption
capital premium reserve
AAEE

.3 B # itk B {8
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EETR EETR EETR

As at 1 January 2018 N=F—-NE—HF—H 28,331 690,811 295
Profit/(loss) for the year SERiEH(EBEE) - - -
Other comprehensive expense He2mEx
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: LATIEESTEEHEEE:
Deficit on revaluation of buildings, BFEHEE  NMRETHRIEBE

net of deferred tax (note 14) (P 5E14) - - -
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to ATIEBREAEENHHEIER

profit or loss:
Exchange loss on translation of foreign operations BREFINEBCEREE - - -

Total comprehensive (expense)/income FREXTEZ) WA
for the year - - -

Proposed final dividends for 2018 BRERIT-N\FRERE
(note 15a) (Fff 7E15(a)) - - -
Distribution to non-controlling shareholders of a DIRTHEBATZIEERRR
subsidiary (note 36) (Fft 5£36) = = =
Final and special dividend paid for 2017 (note 15(b)) BENZZE—tFRARFRRE
(M 5E15(0)) - - -

As at 31 December 2018 R-—F—-N\NE+=-A=+-—8 28,331 690,811 295
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
o ME 4R B B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{ 2 = F —/\iF +=H=+—HI- FZ

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
AASHEANEIL#ER

Proposed
Asset final and Non-
revaluation Retained Exchange Special special controlling Total
reserve profits reserve reserve dividends Total interests equity
BEERG AP R
& ®E i F BE 52 fi& 455 Tl 17% 6 IR “@st FEERER i
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
EETR EETR EETR EETR EETR EETR EETR EETR

1,088 19,076,488 2,564 1,848 56,662 19,858,087 35,861 19,893,948
= 671,592 = = = 671,592 (6,738) 664,854
(400) = = = = (400) = (400)
= = (31,453) = = (31,453) (1,723) (33,176)
(400) 671,592 (31,453) = = 639,739 (8,461) 631,278
= (56,662) = = 56,662 = = =

_ _ _ - - - (12,345) (12,345)

= = = = (56,662) (56,662) = (56,662)

688 19,691,418 (28,889) 1,848 56,662 20,441,164 15,055 20,456,219
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A e AR 2 I R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8t 2 =L —/\F + = A=+ —HI F &

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
RRBEEAEHER

Capital
Share Share redemption
capital premium reserve
EENHE
& 7R & 15 4 8 &
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
ok e ok e BT
As at 1 January 2017 R-—®—t&—HA—H 28,331 690,811 295
Profit for the year FERiEEF — — _
Other comprehensive (expense)/income Hihz2mBEIxR) WA
ltem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: LWTHEEBTEEN D HEIER:
Deficit on revaluation of buildings, BFEHEE  NMRETHRIEBE
net of deferred tax (note 14) (Pt 5%14) - - -
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to LWTHEHEZREFHEIELS:
profit or loss:
Exchange gain on translation of foreign operations B INER 2 B H IS - - -
Total comprehensive (expense)/income FERESTEXR) WA
for the year - - -
Proposed final dividends for 2017 BE_ZT-LFERERE
(note 15(a)) (P 5% 15(0)) — — —
Lapse of share option B IR 2K A — — —
Final and special dividend paid for 2016 (note 15(0)) ERNZT-—AFRARERIRE
(Pt 5£15(0)) - - -
As at 31 December 2017 R-E—tE+=-A=+—H 28,331 690,811 295
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ARG HE B R
For the year ended 31 December 2018 8l 2 = F —/\iF +=H =+ —HIL F &
Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
RARHEB A EIERER
Employee Proposed
Asset  share-based final and Non-
revaluation equity Retained Exchange Special special controlling Total
reserve reserve profits reserve reserve dividends Total interests equity
BEEH BT R BEAHR FE 2 AR
& 1 = R B 5 Al HE 5 % f 5 Rl i 1 Rl AR S it 1 k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T T BT BT BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
2,546 21,928 17,910,441 (25,154) 1,848 339,970 18,971,016 31,685 19,002,701
— — 1,200,781 — — — 1,200,781 815 1,201,596
(1,458) — — — — — (1,458) — (1,458)
— — — 27,718 — — 27,718 3,361 31,079
(1,458) — 1,200,781 27,718 — — 1,227,041 4176 1,231,217
— — (56,662) — — 56,662 — — —
— (21,928) 21,928 — — — — — —
— — — — — (839,970) (839,970) — (339,970)
1,088 — 19,076,488 2,564 1,848 56,662 19,858,087 35,861 19,893,948
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SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED

GENERAL INFORMATION

Soundwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated and domiciled in Bermuda. The
address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 35
to the consolidated financial statements. The Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) is principally engaged in property
development, property leasing and provision of building
management services.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider the
Company’s ultimate holding party to be a discretionary trust
(the “Trust”), which Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace, the Chairman
of the board of Directors, and her family members (including
Ms. Chan Wai Ling, executive director of the Company) are the
beneficiaries of the Trust.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”)

21 New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for
the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance
Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and

Measurement of Share-
based Payment
Transactions
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
f 1 B 5 A Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # 2 —FE—N\F+ - H="1+—HIFF/&F

— iR &E#
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AR EBERZER AR - AQAE ]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IV B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8l 2 = F —/\iF +=H=+—HI  F &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

241

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

In addition, the Group has applied Amendments to
HKFRS 9 “Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation” in advance of the effective date, i.e. 1
January 2019. The new and amendments to HKFRSs
have been applied in accordance with the relevant
transition provisions in the respective standards and
amendments which results in changes in accounting
policies, amounts reported and/or disclosures as
described below.

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

FERHE] RAEIETEEMBR
HERA(EFEMBHREEL D

(&)

21

REAFEETE R ZHETREE
A EEMBREEE

o REFEEEERBHEIZF
—NE-—A-BMEREEMBER
EEAFOR BT EFAMENTE
M- ZEMFT REETREM
BHREENDRIBZER RERT 2B
FEREXER  AmER Tz e
AR EMEBR S HBRBER
) o

BR XAt oh - MANEE ERFET &
RIEFTBAMBREENHAEER
FEMBEFENTHRA LR
R/ERGEMBERRAENRE
ERUEBELEATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I R W RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8t 2 =L —/\F + = A=+ —HI F &

2.1.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS
18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts”
and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying this
standard recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2018. Any difference at the
date of initial application is recognised in the
opening retained profits (or other components of
equity, as appropriate) and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore, in
accordance with the transition provisions in
HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the
standard retrospectively only to contracts that are
not completed at 1 January 2018 and has used
the practical expedient for all contract
modifications that occurred before the date of
initial application, the aggregate effect of all of the
modifications was reflected at the date of initial
application. Accordingly, certain comparative
information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under
HKAS 18 “Revenue” and HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts” and the related interpretations.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

2.1.1 BEEHMFHEEERFE155 K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IV B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8l 2 = F —/\iF +=H=+—HI  F &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

241

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(Continued)
2.1.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (Continued)

The Group recognises revenue from the following
major sources which arise from contracts with
customers:

° Sales of completed properties for sale
° Provision of building management service

° Provision of property repairs and
maintenance service

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations and the accounting policies resulting
from application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in
notes 6 and 4 respectively.

FERHE] RAEIETEEMBR
HERA(EFEMBHREEL D

(&)

21 MNAFEBHENZHITRERE
A EEMBREEE

211 EEMBHEEERF15% K
BEEF&EHZH I(4E)
REEBRRRATFAHZK
mLZEEZRIRWTE :

e HECDERBEME

s RUBFEERY

o REMEEBRERERS
HERE B MR EERE15
BREEZASBERNEENRS

HEEZER - HRIRHEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I R W RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8t 2 =L —/\F + = A=+ —HI F &

2.1.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application

of HKFRS 15

The following adjustments were made to the
amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at 1 January 2018. Line items
that were not affected by the changes have not

been included.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

2.1.1 BEEHMFEEERFE155 K

HEF&HZ Wt |(4)
BEREREBHEEEERE
16FELZ ZEB A
BEHR-_ZF-N\F-A—BZ&
BMBMNKRAER 2 RBIEF
HIATER - " XEBEH
BI2HRBYARBEERN -

Carrying
amounts
previously Carrying
reported at amounts under
31 December HKFRS 15 at
2017 Reclassification 1 January 2018
RZE-N\&
KRR —B—H
—E-tE REBEERE
+=ZA=+-H i & 8 155
REZRTE ENNE HEZKEE
Note HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$°000
i EETR EETR EETR
Current liabilities RBER
Deposits received in advance BET2 (@) 292,733 (292,733) -
Contract liabilities AHEE (@) - 292,733 292,733
Note: B 3E
a) As at 1 January 2018, advances from customers of a) R-ZE—N\&E—HF—H #i%

HK$292,733,000 in respect of sales of properties
contracts previously presented as deposits received
in advance were reclassified to contract liabilities.

A2 ABRIE ZMENE
ERBRZRETREZ 2N
#0202,733,0007C © © & # H
BAEEHNARE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 A IV R M SR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8l 2 = F —/\iF +=H=+—HI  F &

2.1.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 2.1.1
Customers (Continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 15 (Continued)
The following tables summarise the impacts of
applying HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018 and its consolidated statement of cash flows
for the current year for each of the line items
affected. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial

BHEHMBIHREERE155 %
BEEFSHZHE (4E)
BEAREREEYBEIREERE
1655 4 2 7 Z it ()
TERUSXTZEIEEM A ER
&S BT RS A B8R H A
SER =T N\F+=A=1+—
BZHRaMBMRRRRELRF
EHReBenesRELEZY
2 AT EEEHTEHEE
YABIEER -

HEAMBRRARZEE

position

Amounts
without
application
As reported Adjustments of HKFRS 15
REREERM
BREEASE
RRE HE 15WZEEHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BETR EBETR EETR

Current liabilities RENEE
Deposits received in advance EWET® - 154,469 154,469
Contract liabilities ARNEaE 154,469 (154,469) —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B T B i R W R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8t 2 =L —/\F + = A=+ —HI F &

2.1.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 15 (Continued)
Impact on the consolidated statement of cash
flows

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

211 EEMBHEEERF15% K
HEEF&EH Y I(4E)
B X EHE B3 & ERE
1655 4 2 7 Z it ()
HiRaBHenRnER2TE

Amounts

without

application

As reported Adjustments of HKFRS 15
REREERM

BREEAS

RRE HE 15WMZEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR EBETR EETR

OPERATING ACTIVITIES WEER

Decrease in contract liabilites & %) B 1&)

Decrease in deposits received in BUET &)
advance

=11

=]

138,264 (138,264) —

— 138,264 138,264

There is no material impact on the revenue
recognition on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognised upon the application of HKFRS 15 on
1 January 2018.

R-ZF-\F—A—BEAEE
B 75 ¥ 5 4E Rl 1657 12 HE AR UL
BmERL SR REH NS
MARAELEARE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%o T B R R T

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8l 2 = F —/\iF +=H=+—HI  F &

2.1.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the

related amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS
9 “Financial Instruments”, Amendments to HKFRS
9 “Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation” and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9
introduces new requirements for 1) the
classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, 2) expected credit losses
(“ECL) for financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts and 3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance
with the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9,
i.e. applied the classification and measurement
requirements (including impairment under ECL
model) retrospectively to instruments that have not
been derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date of
initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already
been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The
difference between carrying amounts as at 31
December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at 1
January 2018 are recognised in the opening
retained profits and other components of equity,
without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information
was prepared under HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.

Accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 9 are disclosed in note 4.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. FERMFIREEITEENHR
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HERAN(EEMBREED)
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (48)

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.1 New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are 21 MEFERFNEZRZHITRERE
mandatorily effective for the current year AIEEMBHREERN(E)
(Continued)

2.1.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the 2.1.2 EEH B EEREIF T
related amendments (Continued) TR/RHERFHIET(E)
Summary of effects arising from initial application B X JE & B 75 3 & 2R
of HKFRS 9 IR EH 2 Wt
The table below illustrates the classification of TRTFFRBRERBH(CE
financial assets under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at —N\F—A—R)EBHBRE
the date of initial application, 1 January 2018. ERIFES KB BT ERIFE3I9

MBTZHMBEEZDE -

Financial

Structured assets at
bank deposits FVTPL
HAFHE

SR stAE#

RITER ZUMBEE

Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Pt & EETRT EETRT

Closing balance at 31 December R=ZE—+F+=H

2017 under HKAS 39 =+ —BRESE
B ETERIFE39
SR F R 106,559 -
Effect arising from initial application of &)X & & /& B 1%
HKFRS 9: REERFEIFE
Cvd-2- &
Reclassification i (@) (106,559) 106,559

Opening balance at 1 January 2018 HR=Z—\F
—HA—BZ%F%
R — 106,559
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 8l 2 = F —/\iF +=H=+—HI  F &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.1 New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

2.1.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the
related amendments (Continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 9 (Continued)
(@  Financial assets at FVTPL and/or designated
at FVTPL

At the date of initial application, the Group
no longer applied designation as measured
at FVTPL for the structured bank deposits.
However, the Group continues to measure
the structured bank deposits at FVTPL as
the contractual terms of structured bank
deposits give rise to cash flows that are not
solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding. As at 1
January 2018, structured bank deposits of
HK$106,559,000 were reclassified to
financial assets at FVTPL. There was no
impact on the amounts recognised in
relation to this structured bank deposits
from the application of HKFRS 9.

FERHE] RAEIETEEMBR
HERA(EFEMBHREEL D

REAFEETE R ZHETREE
sl EFE MRS R (E)

212 BEEMBERERRBIF T

T RI/RHEHIEET (&)
BRERE MK EERE
IGRELZZER M (E)

@)
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W& E
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TEREBIERITIFERE
BiETEAFEFAEBERE
FTE o AR AEBEEE
BAFEFABR =L
BURITHER - RARE
&M RITIF KA KV IG SR PT
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BIEZfAE R AREER
B - RZB—NE—
A—B - #BMHRTER
7 #106,559,0007T & =
o E AR AFERAR
mZUEEE - BRARB
B 755 3R 25 2 Rl S5 055 4
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 8t 2 =L —/\F + = A=+ —HI F &

2.1.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the
related amendments (Continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(b)

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure ECL which uses a
lifetime ECL for trade receivables. To
measure the ECL, trade receivables are
assessed individually for each debtor. Based
on the assessment by the management of
the Group, the ECL on trade receivables is
insignificant as at 1 January 2018.

Loss allowances for other financial assets at
amortised cost, mainly comprise of loan
receivables, other receivables and deposits,
bank deposits at escrow account, restricted
bank deposits, short-term bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents and financial
guarantee contracts are measured on
12-month ECL basis as there had been no
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

For bank deposits at escrow account,
restricted bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents, the
Group only transacts with reputable banks
with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies and
consider the risk of default is regard as low
and 12-month ECL is insignificant as at 1
January 2018.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

212 BEEHFERERREISHE
I RI/RHEHIEST (&)
BERERAE BB EERE
IFELZZEBA ()

(b)

EHMEEEBREAERT
A
AEBERATEVBRSE
ERNFORBEHT A E
BEHEEER  BIslES
J& R IR 8 A R HATR
SEEE - RFTERME
BEER  2EMNFEEE
BANE SRR - &
AEEERENG B
U RIERN —F—\F —
A—RZEHEERRY
TERK -

Y2 58 5 X AR 51 B 2 EL A
BEEZEERBIER
REWE - EAb R
BREE  REERPZ
RITFR - ZRHIRITE
R EHRITESR B
;B &S EBY R MBHER
B - T2 AR EE
SEEE  REAREE
ERkBVTERARL
EEEM -

AREERFPZRITE
o ZREEBITER R
BRI A RIR € 3R
cEEBYME  AEEE
H B (ZEWERERE BT
TRBELETREETRZ
BITHETRS  TRER
—T-N\F—H—Bzi#&
R IR - 1218 A8 H
EEBETTERK-



20184 #

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 A IV R M SR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8l 2 = F —/\iF +=H=+—HI  F &

2.1.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the
related amendments (Continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(b)

Impairment under ECL model (Continued)

For other receivables and deposits the
management of the Group makes periodic
individual assessment on the recoverability
of other receivables and deposits based on
historical settlement records and past
experience with available, reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information.
Based on assessment by the management
of the Group, management of the Group
considers that the ECL for other receivables
and deposits is insignificant as at 1 January
2018.

For loan receivables, the management of the
Group estimates the estimated loss rates of
loan receivables based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life
of the debtors as well as the value of the
collateral (i.e. properties pledged) of each
loan receivables. Based on assessment by
the management of the Group, the
management of the Group considers that
the ECL for loan receivables is insignificant
as the value of collateral is higher than the
carrying amount of respective loan
receivables.

For outstanding financial guarantees
provided to banks for the mortgage loans
arranged for the purchasers of the Group’s
properties of HK$309,431,000 as at 1
January 2018, the Group considers that the
ECL on the financial guarantee contracts is
insignificant after the assessment by the
management of the Group as at 1 January
2018.

212 BEEMBERERRBIF
I RIRHEEHIEET (&)
BREREEHEREERE
IFELZZEBA ()

o)

BHEEBEBREAET
AR (48)

hE A B WK TR M BT &
5 ASEEREESRE
FErL#aELHEMBER
B M EaEBERM{E R
ZASRIEE R - EHIY
Hith FEUCRIA K 7] & 2 7l
Yo Bl i ZAETTEBIFFE -
BEAEEEEENG K
SEEEERSEMER
RERFTER-_FT—NF
—A—HZBEHEEER
WAREK e

EWERME - AEE
EEESREEBARE
ARFERZBEERENL
RARBERRER 2K
Am(AIEERME)E
B HEHERER B
BEE - BAKEEEE
FHE - AREEEERR
RUER B EER
BAFEKX - RELZEM
mBERNBRERER
ZAREE -

MR=—ZE—N\F—H—H
RAEEMEERLHZ
EBRERMERTIRITZ
RBEHBEREE
309,431,0007T il & @ #&
AEBERETNGE A
SERBYBERELOR
- N\F—A—RHzHE
HEEBBRITEKX -

151



152

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I R W RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8t 2 =L —/\F + = A=+ —HI F &

2.1.3 Impacts on opening consolidated statement
of financial position arising from the
application of all new standards
As a result of the changes in the Group’s
accounting policies above, the opening
consolidated statement of financial position had to
be restated. The following table show the

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

21.3 BT EHETERIH FEWGEE

HERREZEE

REAEEz F St BHRE
B FUNGEAVBARANKRAT

B - TRIIREE

2, B/ 46
X EIR

BRRZAE  FEEME

s/ 5

ZEBYRBEER -

adjustments recognised for each of the line items =
affected. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.
As at As at
31 December 1 January
2017 HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 2018
®
—T—tF EEMB EHMB ?
+=A & %Al HEEA —T-N\E¥
Ear=Il 155% SE95k —HA—H
(audited) (restated)
(BER) (EE7)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EETT BETT BETT BETT
Current assets mENEE
Structured bank deposits HEBMUERITER 106,559 — (106,559) —
Financial assets at FVTPL RAFEFABREZ
HMBEE — — 106,559 106,559
Current liabilities g R=Ri
Deposits received in advance BETE 292,733 (292,733) - -
Contract liabilities aHBaE - 292,733 - 292,733

Note: For the purposes of reporting cash flows from
operating activities under indirect method for the
year ended 31 December 2018, movements in
working capital have been computed based on
opening consolidated statement of financial position

as at 1 January 2018 as disclosed above.

M RREBERZEEBREBE_Z
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 16 Leases!
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'
Amendments to Definition of a Business*
HKFRS 3
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material®
and HKAS 8
Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment
HKAS 19 or Settlement’
Amendments to Long-term Interests in
HKAS 28 Associates and Joint
Ventures'
Amendments to Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle!

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

o Effective for business combination for which the acquisition

date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I R W RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8t 2 =L —/\F + = A=+ —HI F &

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the Directors anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and
leaseback transactions to be determined based on the
requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of
the relevant asset should be accounted as a sale.
HKFRS 16 also includes requirements relating to
subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a
model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets.
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HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at
the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted
for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of
lease modifications, amongst others. For the
classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents
upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows
in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those
classified as investment properties while other operating
lease payments are presented as operating cash flows.
Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in
relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal
and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing cash flows by the Group.

Other than certain requirements which are also
applicable to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17,
and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease
either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$6,807,000 as disclosed in note 31(a). A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16,
the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable
rental deposits received of HK$173,362,000 as rights
and obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies.
Based on the definition of lease payments under HKFRS
16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right
to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying
amounts of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised
cost. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid
would be considered as additional lease payments and
included in the carrying amount of right-of-use assets.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received
would be considered as advance lease payments.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The application of new requirements may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure
as indicated above. The Group intends to elect the
practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that
were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17
and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 “Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease” and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously identified
as containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4. Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether the
contracts are, or contain a lease which already existed
prior to the date of initial application. Furthermore, the
Group intends to elect the modified retrospective
approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee and
will recognise the cumulative effect of initial application to
opening retained profits without restating comparative
information.
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The consolidated financial statements on pages 128 to
288 have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments, investment properties and
buildings which are measured at fair values or revalued
amounts at the end of the reporting period as set out in
the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in
use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use. Fair
value under HKFRS 13 is an exit price regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique.

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Basis of measurement (Continued)

The significant accounting policies that have been used
in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are summarised below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates are
based on management’s best knowledge and
judgement of current events and actions, actual results
may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
note 5.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

441

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

3.

4,
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The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSS).

Acquisition of subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a subsidiary where the
underlying assets are not integrated in forming a
business, the transaction is accounted for as a purchase
of net assets. The cost of the acquisition is allocated to
the identifiable assets and liabilities assumed by
allocating the purchase price first to investment
properties which are subsequently measured under fair
value model and financial assets/financial liabilities at the
respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair
values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does
not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 8l 2 = F —/\iF +=H=+—HI  F &

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint
operations, the Group as a joint operator recognises in
relation to its interest in a joint operation:

° its assets, including its share of any assets held
jointly;
° its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities

incurred jointly;

° its revenue from the sale of its share of the output
arising from the joint operation;

° its share of the revenue from the sale of the output
by the joint operation; and

° its expenses, including its share of any expenses
incurred jointly.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in
which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale or
contribution of assets), the Group is considered to be
conducting the transaction with the other parties to the
joint operation, and gains and losses resulting from the
transactions are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of other parties’
interests in the joint operation.
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Interests in joint operations (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in
which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a
purchase of assets), the Group does not recognise its
share of the gains and losses until it resells those assets
to a third party.

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for sales of such
asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale
when the criteria described above are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in
the relevant subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs of disposal,
except for financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9/
HKAS 39 and investment properties which continue to
be measured in accordance with the accounting policies
as set out in respective sections.
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Investment properties are properties held either to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation (including
properties under construction or held for future
development for such purposes), but not held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes.

Investment properties are measured at cost, including
directly attributable expenditure, on initial recognition.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair value with any change therein
recognised in profit or loss.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalised as part of the carrying
amount of the investment properties under construction.

A transfer from properties for sale to investment property
should be made when, and only when, there is an
evidence (such as inception of the lease) for a change in
use. For a transfer to investment property, if the property
will be carried at fair value, any difference between the
fair value and the carrying amount of the property at the
date of transfer is recognised in profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the properties) is recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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Buildings held for own use are stated at revalued
amount, being their fair value at the date of the
revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to
ensure that the carrying amount of these assets does
not differ materially from that which would be determined
using fair value at the end of the reporting period.

Any increase arising on revaluation is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
asset revaluation reserve, unless the carrying amount of
that asset has previously suffered a decrease in
revaluation. To the extent that any decrease has
previously been recognised in profit or loss, a revaluation
increase is credited to profit or loss with the remaining
part of the increase dealt with in other comprehensive
income. A decrease in net carrying amount of buildings
arising on revaluation is recognised in other
comprehensive income to the extent of the revaluation
surplus in the asset revaluation reserve relating to the
same asset and the remaining decrease is recognised in
profit or loss.

Other items of property, plant and equipment, are stated
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included
in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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Depreciation is provided to write off the cost/revalued
amount of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold lands Over the lease period
Buildings 2%
Leasehold improvements 10%-30%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10%—-20%
Motor vehicles 6%-15%

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date with the effect of any changes in
estimates being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on
disposal is determined as the difference between the net
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss. Any relevant revaluation
surplus remaining in equity is transferred directly to
retained profits on the disposal of buildings.

Properties held for development represent payments for
interest in agricultural lands and are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of the non-financial assets to
determine whether there is any indication that they have
suffered an impairment loss or if any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of non-financial assets are
estimated individually, when it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an asset individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit.
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An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease according to that
standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation increase under that standard.

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that arrangement conveys a right to use a
specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in
return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement, regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

5 A IV R M SR

BB R AN R BRI - FRIEE
BEREELEM) RIFEMAER
REMRTBEIE  AEZBERT R
BEERDREZEMMESEMRE
BRIB o

e E R R E R B E - ZEE (KR
SELEM) CREERMNEELTR
Bl & 8 2 ERT b5 - HERTIB I BRE
BETNSEBEXEE (KRS ELEM
BT I 5 R E B R R
BEZREE - BEBEREARR
BafER - RIFEHEEERES A
HRIZE[HSEINER - EULBERT -
R {51 785 18 %k [B] Rl 4% 5% 2 R AR AF E A
EERE -

fief 2N 5% DR TE 10 155 7€ B B S 1 RE
BEFEMAELBENGER—F—EH
Nz BR-BAXGHESR
HZHZBALZFABRLBE—AM
B RBEREDERZHFARTZMEE
mAEH - T i B 2 B & R EUE
B 2RBTA -

WEEZIRREBEAA BRI
R R EIHRTFABEA - MEESES
MEHE - IERMEENEREE
HE -

169



170

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I R W RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8t 2 =L —/\F + = A=+ —HI F &

The Group as lessor under operating lease

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset. Other than
investment properties measured under fair value model,
such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent
rental payments are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

The Group as lessee under operating lease

Total rentals payable under operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Lease incentives received
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.

Leasehold land

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of each
element separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to
the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire property is
accounted as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire
consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element at initial recognition.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1
January 2018. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I R W RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8t 2 =L —/\F + = A=+ —HI F &

4.9.1 Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the date of
initial application/initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in other comprehensive income (“OCI”)
if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8l 2 = F —/\iF +=H=+—HI  F &

4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)
In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period, with any
fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on
the financial asset and is included in the “other
gains and losses” line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I R W RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8t 2 =L —/\F + = A=+ —HI F &

4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with

note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9 (including trade and other
receivables and deposits, loan receivables, bank
deposits at escrow account, restricted bank
deposits, short-term bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents) and financial guarantee
contracts. The amount of ECL is updated at the
end of the reporting period to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime
ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the end of
each reporting period. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables. The ECL on these assets are
assessed individually for each debtor.
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4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with
note 2) (Continueq)
For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or
risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with
note 2) (Continueq)

0

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results
in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with
note 2) (Continueq)

0

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a
low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt
instrument to have low credit risk when it
has an internal or external credit rating of
“investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I R W RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8t 2 =L —/\F + = A=+ —HI F &

4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with
note 2) (Continueq)

0

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
For financial guarantee contracts, the date
that the Group becomes a party to the
irrevocable commitment is considered to be
the date of initial recognition for the
purposes of assessing the financial
instrument for impairment. In assessing
whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition of a financial guarantee contract,
the Group considers the changes in the risk
that the specified debtor will default on the
contract.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past
due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8l 2 = F —/\iF +=H=+—HI  F &

4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with
note 2) (Continueq)

(i)

)

Definition of default

The Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one
or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@  significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I R W RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8t 2 =L —/\F + = A=+ —HI F &

4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with

note 2) (Continueq)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for

economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.

(iv)  Write-off policy
The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two
years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8l 2 = F —/\iF +=H=+—HI  F &

4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with
note 2) (Continueq)

\)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition. For a
lease receivable, the cash flows used for
determining the ECL is consistent with the
cash flows used in measuring the lease
receivable in accordance with HKAS 17
“Leases”.

For a financial guarantee contract, the
Group is required to make payments only in
the event of a default by the debtor in
accordance with the terms of the instrument
that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the
expected losses is the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder
for a credit loss that it incurs less any
amounts that the Group expects to receive
from the holder, the debtor or any other

party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I R W RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8t 2 =L —/\F + = A=+ —HI F &

4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with
note 2) (Continueq)

\)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for
which the effective interest rate cannot be
determined, the Group will apply a discount
rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and
the risks that are specific to the cash flows
but only if, and to the extent that, the risks
are taken into account by adjusting the
discount rate instead of adjusting the cash
shortfalls being discounted.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of
the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9;
and the amount initially recognised less,
where appropriate, cumulative amount of
income recognised over the guarantee
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8l 2 = F —/\iF +=H=+—HI  F &

4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with

note 2) (Continueq)
(v Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade
receivables, loan receivables and financial
guarantee contracts where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on
1 January 2018)

Financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets at FVTPL
and loans and receivables. The Group classified
financial assets on initial recognition, depending
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

(i) Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They
arise principally through the provision of
goods and services to customers (trade
debtors), and may also incorporate other
types of contractual monetary assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are
carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I R W RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8t 2 =L —/\F + = A=+ —HI F &

4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on
1 January 2018) (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as financial
assets at FVTPL when it is a derivative that
is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument; or it forms part of a contract
containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition. Financial
assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in the profit
or loss excludes any interest earned on the
financial assets and is included in “other
gains and losses” line item. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in note
22.

Impairment of financial assets (before application
of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been affected.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8l 2 = F —/\iF +=H=+—HI  F &

4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application
of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Continueq)

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

° it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I R W RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8t 2 =L —/\F + = A=+ —HI F &

4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application
of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Continueq)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
short term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value, and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 A WS R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8l 2 = F —/\iF +=H=+—HI  F &

4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

4.9.2 Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I R W RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8t 2 =L —/\F + = A=+ —HI F &

4.9.2 Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are
measured initially at their fair values. It is
subsequently measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9 (since 1
January 2018)/HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
January 2018); and

° the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised over the guarantee period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8l 2 = F —/\iF +=H=+—HI  F &

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Properties for sale

The cost of properties for sale comprises the acquisition
cost of land, development expenditure, other direct
expenses and capitalised borrowing costs (see note
4.18). Cost of properties for sale is determined by
apportionment of the total costs attributable to the
unsold properties.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price less all estimated cost of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

(i)  Revenue from contracts with customers

(upon application of HKFRS 15 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)
Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the
Group’s performance as the Group
performs;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I R W RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8t 2 =L —/\F + = A=+ —HI F &

(i)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(upon application of HKFRS 15 in

accordance with transitions in note 2)

(Continued)

° the Group’s performance creates and
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer that
is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to
a contract are accounted for and presented on a
net basis.

()

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

KEEF &4 2t (1R 15 I
H2ZHBEEREEMBRE
FERFE15HE)(E)

o  AKEZREHBRIIRTT
B P IAANSR B & 40 b5 12 1
ZEE

s AREZEANYERETH
AEBERHEMBEZE
E MAKEHESER
X Z BRI A SR B 1T
R -

7

iy

A1+ Y g % P ERAS AT A
BEOZERIMBZEHELZ
By ) B FE AR

gu

Ih

BHMEERASERCDEET

BEPZEREMRBEBMAEZ
RN (5 R A EGM) ER
BERBMBGHRE LTSRN
AR - R ERRIAE AR
B KRB Z AR AR - R
BRI E R 2 B AT E AR
% -

BHREREARENREAER
WE 2 KEEHKESREEH)
AEFEREMmIAMB A
£ o

pei

BRZEHNEERARN
Tr—‘-!

=)
S DIRFREEARLK R

\
/

omﬂ>

iy



20184 #

(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8l 2 = F —/\iF +=H=+—HI  F &

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one
performance obligations (i.e. providing financial
guarantee to banks with respect to mortgage
loans procured by the purchasers of the Group’s
properties in the contracts on sales of properties),
the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good
or service underlying each performance obligation
is determined at contract inception. It represents
the price at which the Group would sell a
promised good or service separately to a
customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not
directly observable, the Group estimates it using
appropriate techniques such that the transaction
price ultimately allocated to any performance
obligation reflects the amount of consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or
services to the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I R W RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8t 2 =L —/\F + = A=+ —HI F &

(i)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for
the effects of the time value of money if the timing
of payments agreed (either explicitly or implicitly)
provides the customer or the Group with a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer. In those
circumstances, the contract contains a significant
financing component. A significant financing
component may exist regardless of whether the
promise of financing is explicitly stated in the
contract or implied by the payment terms agreed
to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment
and transfer of the associated goods or services is
less than one year, the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the transaction price for
any significant financing component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 8l 2 = F —/\iF +=H=+—HI  F &

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those
costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract
with a customer that it would not have incurred if
the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (i.e. sales
commissions in relation to the sales of properties)
as an asset if it expects to recover these costs.
The asset recognised is subsequently amortised
to profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of the
goods or services to which the assets relate. The
asset is subject to impairment review.

The Group applies the practical expedient of
expensing all incremental costs to obtain a
contract if these costs would otherwise have been
fully amortised to profit or loss within one year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I R W RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8t 2 =L —/\F + = A=+ —HI F &

(ii)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January
2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable.

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group; when the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably and when specific criteria have been met
for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Contingent rentals are recognised
as income in the accounting period in which they
are earned. Turnover rent is recognised when the
underlying lessee’s revenue transaction is
recognised.

Revenue from sales of properties in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the
respective properties have been completed and
delivered to the buyers. Deposits and instalments
received from purchasers prior to this stage are
included in current liabilities and are not
recognised as revenue.

Income from management services, property
repairs and maintenance services are recognised
in the period when the respective services are
rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time basis on
the principal outstanding at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

(i)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

W R (—F—\E—A—H
#)

I 35 R B e ok FE I E 2 A T
g -

EARERERSEENE
BER SRt E W KA A (1 &
RIRFET AN EEZHE
2 E R B E R R

N
S o

T

REHECHSWRARBBA
EFHAREREERR - 3k
AMEEWE 2 & 5 HIE#R
RAUA - BT S HE R &
A 2 W 5t 32 5 W o0 By S 1T R

7
o

a

EEREBBRTHENEE
EzWas RAEBYERRTY
RN TFTERKER - NI K
Al A B R WEUZ 7T & &> B K
RISRBEE BTSSR
R o

EERY - MERERRER
B AR IR R B B IR HI A

MEBBATRBREERAS R
B R 2 BRI R LA B ] & R
REBRNEINUBEELZ
B FHB A ARRRASHA
RERERRIR 2 % B E V) I8 HE RS
ZREFEZNE -



20184 #
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 8l 2 = F —/\iF +=H=+—HI  F &

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
translated using exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the foreign exchange rates prevailing at
that date.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

In the consolidated financial statements, the financial
statements of foreign operations, originally presented in a
currency different from the Group’s presentation
currency, have been converted into HK$. Assets and
liabilities have been translated into HK$ at the closing
rate at the reporting date. Income and expenses have
been converted into the HK$ at average rates over the
reporting period provided that the exchange rates over
that period did not fluctuate significantly. Any differences
arising from this procedure have been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the exchange reserve in equity. Goodwill
and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign operation have been treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated into HK$
at the closing rates (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 8t 2 =L —/\F + = A=+ —HI F &

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are
unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of income tax
expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences at
the reporting date between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and their corresponding tax bases used in
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to
be carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits
can be utilised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 8l 2 = F —/\iF +=H=+—HI  F &

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investment in
subsidiaries and interests in joint operation, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period the liability
is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rate (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with
the above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e.
based on the expected manner as to how the properties
will be recovered).

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,
(@  the Group has the legally enforceable right to set

off the recognised amounts; and

(b)  intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8l 2 = F —/\iF +=H=+—HI  F &

Defined contribution retirement plans
Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions. The
Group’s obligations under these plans are limited
to the fixed percentage contributions payable.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such
as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the
reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that another
HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion in the
cost of an asset.

()
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In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

(i)  Deferred tax arising from fair value changes in

investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the
Group’s investment properties are not held under a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time. Therefore, in
determining the Group’s deferred taxation on investment
properties, the Directors have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted.
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The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

(i)

Estimated fair value of investment properties and
revalued amount of buildings

As at the reporting date, the Group’s investment
properties are stated at fair value and buildings are
stated at revalued amount based on the valuation
performed by an independent qualified professional
valuer. In determining the fair value/revalued amount, the
valuer has based its valuation on income capitalisation
approach or direct comparison or the residual method,
as appropriate for respective investment properties, and
valuation on net replacement cost method for buildings,
which involves certain estimates, including comparable
market transactions, appropriate capitalisation rates and
reversionary rental value, estimated gross development
value, estimated cost of development and allowance of
profit that duly reflected developer’s risk associated with
the development, as appropriate. In relying on the
valuation, management has exercised their judgement
and is satisfied that the methods of valuation adopted
are appropriate for the relevant property and reflective of
current market conditions. As at 31 December 2018, the
fair value of Group’s investment properties and revalued
amount of buildings were HK$20,439,237,000 and
HK$39,378,000 (2017: HK$19,497,324,000 and
HK$40,779,000), respectively.
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(ii)

Net realisable values of properties for sale
Management determines the net realisable values of
properties for sale based on the Group’s assessment of
the selling price ultimately expected to be realised less all
estimated cost to completion and cost necessary to
make the sale. The estimated selling price of such
properties are determined by the management with
reference to prevailing market data such as most recent
sale transactions of similar properties or market valuation
reports available from independent qualified professional
valuers. Such valuations are made based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainties and
might materially differ from the actual result. In making
the judgement, reasonable consideration has been given
to the underlying assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the reporting date. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual market data
and actual transactions in the market. As at 31
December 2018, the carrying amount of properties for
sale was HK$954,855,000 (2017: HK$1,407,876,000).

(ii)
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6. REVENUE 6. Ui
An analysis of the Group’s revenue from its principal activities AREB 2 EEEB 2 W R EMKRA DT
and other income is as follows: e
i) Disaggregation of revenue and reconciliation i) Wi E PR R W A E AR

to segment revenue

2018 2017
—E-N\%E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Revenue from contracts with REFEMBRE
customers under HKFRS 15 #ZR|E15WKBER
ezl
Property development* YIKER
— Sales of completed properties —BEKTEME
for sale iH & 417,247 1,696,130
Building management and EFEERA MRS
other services*
— Property repairs and maintenance — MEHBERRE
service income iz 7 W A 8,472 6,504
— Building management service — BFERRS
income N 14,639 14,362
Revenue from contracts with customers 18 15 & i B1 75 37 &5 % 8|
under HKFRS 15 FHRKEEFPER
pal & 440,358 1,716,996
Property leasing* MEHE
— Rental and signage rental income —HeERESEM
HE KA 540,040 508,000
Total revenue B0 i 980,398 2,224,996

*

information” in note 8.

The segment names are defined in the section “Segment

* DEEMWER LW ES D EER]—

Rp °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 8 2 = FE —NF+=H=+—HiIt F&E

6. REVENUE (Continued) 6. Wiz (&)
i) Disaggregation of revenue and reconciliation i) WRERRSHE S HER(E)
to segment revenue (Continued)

Building
management
Property and other
development services
For the year ended 31 December 2018 segment segment Total

BFPEER
BE-F-N\F+_-_A=+—-HLEE MERRSE HORBESE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EETT EETT EETT

Geographical markets i [& T 15
The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)* A& AR EME ([HEH]) * 250,966 - 250,966
Hong Kong BB 166,281 23,111 189,392
417,247 23,111 440,358

Timing of recognition R A E
A point in time R B 417,247 - 417,247
Over time FERS R HERS - 23,111 23,111
417,247 23,111 440,358
* For reporting purpose, the PRC excludes Hong Kong, * MERNS ' PRTBERS 88

Taiwan and Macau RS
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Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when the
respective properties have been completed and
delivered to the customers which is a point in time when
customers have the ability to direct the use of the
properties and obtain substantially all benefits of the
properties. Deposits received from customers prior to
meeting the aforementioned revenue recognition criteria
are regarded as the contract liabilities and included in
current liabilities as pre-sale proceeds received on sales
of properties in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group considers that the pre-sale proceeds
received on sales of properties do not contain significant
financing component as the contracts where the period
between payment and transfer of the associated
properties is less than one year, the Group applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction price
for any significant financing component.

For the contracts that contain the performance
obligation of providing financial guarantee to banks with
respect to mortgage loans procured by the purchasers
of the Group’s properties in the contracts on sales of
properties, the Group should allocate the transaction
price to the performance obligations between the sales
of properties and provision of financial guarantee on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. The Group
considers that the impact in the allocation of provision of
financial guarantee on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis is insignificant during the year ended 31 December
2018 and thus all the revenue recognised from the
contracts with customers on sales of properties is then
allocated to the revenue from sales of completed
properties for sale.
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Property repairs and maintenance service income/
Building management service income

Revenue from provision of property repairs and
maintenance service and provision of building
management service are recognised over time as the
customers simultaneously receive and consume the
benefits provided by the Group when the Group renders
the service.

Contracts for building management services are typically
have one to five years non-cancellable term under which
the Group bills a fixed amount for a month. The Group
elected to apply the practical expedient by recognising
revenue in the amount to which the Group has right to
invoice. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.

All other contracts with customers are for periods of one
year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts
is not disclosed.
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7. OTHER INCOME 7. Hiplg A

2018 2017
—E-)\EF B F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T Nk e e

Interest income from financial assets at EAFEFAERZ
FVTPL B EE 2 BEHRA 5,232 —
Interest income from loan receivables JE U E R B A 1,021 721
Other interest income EHa 5 B A 17,695 11,116
Forfeiture of deposits (note) WWET® (5 3,756 91,214
Miscellaneous income HIEA 19,915 7,101
Total Hok | 47,619 110,152
Note: The amount represents forfeiture of deposits of HK$3,756,000 W eEAREBEE_2—\&+=-_A=+—8H
(2017: HK$91,214,000) upon the termination of the sale and IEFERIEHEME 2 BEEHHERZIR ZET
purchase agreement on sales of properties during the year ended & B ¥3,756,000T (= T — £ F: B &

31 December 2018. 91,214,0007T) ©



208

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I R W RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8t 2 =L —/\F + = A=+ —HI F &

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors for their
decisions about resource allocation to the Group’s business
components and for their review of the performance of those
components. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group commenced the business in mini-storage by acquisition
and rental of industrial buildings in Hong Kong, and it is
considered as a new operating and reportable segment by the
executive directors. For segment reporting, the mini-storage
business have been aggregated with property leasing segment
into a single reportable segment because the mini-storage
operation represents rental of space to third parties. The
business components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined following
the Group’s major business lines.

The Group has identified the following operating and
reportable segments:

Property : Development of residential,
development commercial and industrial
properties

Property leasing Property rental including signage
rental and rental under mini-

storage operation

Building : Provision of building
management management, property repairs
and other and maintenance services
services

Each of these operating and reportable segments is managed
separately as each of the business lines requires different
resources as well as operating approaches.

Also, the Group engaged in properties assembly and sales of
properties business. There is no project under property
assembly business in both years. Thus, this is not constitute a
reportable segment during both years.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

These operating and reportable segments are monitored and
strategic decisions are made on the basis of segment
operating results.

Segment revenue and results

Property development

MERR

2018 2017
ZE-N\E s

8. SEAMR)
UEBERT2RAM2 EIERAR 21
T ER D IR

TERERES
Building management and
Property leasing other services Segment total
MEHE BFEEREMRE NEEH

2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
S —F -\ RSl — T -\ F it

QLGOI HKk$'000 EGUEIIIN  Hk$000 WGTICIINE  HK$000 ESGLETIIE  HK$'000
ERTT EcEEerl EETT ECLEPAN ENTT ECLS ERTT Wk R

Revenue 1§+
External customers R 417,247 1,696,130 540,040 508,000 23,111 20,866 980,398 2,224,996
Inter-segments (note) 2 A () 17 1,381 1,017 453 2,653 3,300 3,687 5,004
Segment revenue S ERE 417,264 1,697,511 541,057 508,453 25,764 24,256 984,085 2,230,220
Segment profits HE R 155,513 448844 503,98 462,271 14,056 10175 672,767 921,200
Certain other income, other gains & FEM U A -

and losses Htts kEE 13,955 8,869
Certain administrative expenses ETIHER (64,433) (80,511)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of HERBARZ

subsidiaries Wiz (B8) 235,812 (50,167)
Net fair value (loss)/gain on E&ﬁ%%/%%ﬁﬁé

investment properties/properties ATE(EBR)/

transfer Wz E (101,018) 528,792
Finance costs BERA (37,815) (25,503)

Profit before income tax expense bR BT 158 B S A

Note: Inter-segment sales are charged at mutual agreed terms.

The operating and reportable segment results exclude finance
costs, net fair value (loss)/gain on investment properties/
properties transfer, gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries,
certain other income, other gains and losses, certain
administrative expenses and income tax expense.

719,268 1,302,770

st : o BEESRBEREZ GRARE -

LERTUEZROBEETEERENAS
REWME MESBATEER), M
B HEMBARzKE,(BER) - 5T
Hp A Bl st M EE B TTERE
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

8. SHEAHE)
STHEERAR

Building management and

Property development Property leasing other services Segment total
MEER MEHE BFEEREMRE SEEH
2018 2017 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
-t D JE T+ F “Z—+F BIEN —T—+F e BJICN T+ F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT WA EETn B SEA ESTT ECLEwAN EETT R
Segment assets DEEE 1,288,491 1,829,118 20,699,144 19,701,201 23,933 35,708 22,011,568 21,566,027
Certain property, plant and ET0E BRRRE

equipment 2,612 2,612
Short-term bank deposits BHETER 575,000 480,055
Certain cash and cash equivalents = TH& MR ESEN 115,184 503,776
Assets classified asheld forsale ~ PEABEZEE 420,000 -
Total assets EEGE 23,124,364 22,552,470
Segment liabilities PEER 438,405 548,781 253,485 162,462 10,180 9,246 702,070 720,489
Certain other payables ETEMERFE 72,374 73,875
Borrowings BE 1,562,788 1,528,120
Provision for income tax R B E 213,381 228,152
Deferred tax liabilities ERHEEE 117,532 107,886
Total liabilities afEpR 2,668,145 2,658,522

Segment assets include all assets other than certain property,
plant and equipment, short-term bank deposits, certain cash
and cash equivalents and assets classified as held for sale.

Segment liabilities comprise all liabilities other than certain
other payables, provision for income tax, deferred tax liabilities

and borrowings.

TREERBREMEEE ETEEETY

X BEERE BHRITENX

T8

ENBRCFEBMARDBERFTEZEE -

NHEABREMERE  ETEEETH
LR SIR - IS EE  BETCHEAR

REE -
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. HEEH(E)
Other segment information HipEEH
Building management and
Property development Property leasing other services Segment total Unallocated Total
NELR WERE BPERRAMRE SEBH KAE Eh

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
S¥-\E EEAEE F-\F RS mF -\ E ARl mF -\ F SR —F -\ F AR —F -\ F
GICHINN  HK$000 MRGICHOIM  HKS'000 ERGLGINNN  HK$'000 EGICHINN HK$000 WRGICHOIN HK$000 MGLEININ  HK$000
EETTE WLAwA ERTT sl EYTT LS E%TT WL Evl EETT WS EYTT Ehsw

Amounts included in the SAR BT E

measure ZRE:
of segment profit:
Other interest income EfpFSHA 1,588 2135 2,711 4 286 66 4,585 2,047 18,110 8,869 17,695 11,116
Interest income from financial assets % A FEFABZZ
at FVTPL BREEZHSBA 5,232 - - - - - 5,232 - - - 5,232 -
Interest income from loan EREFFHBHA
receivables 1,021 721 - - - - 1,021 721 - - 1,021 21
Depreciation FE (139) R - Q%) (31 - 02 %) 20
Amortisation of properties held GRENEER
for development (546) (#13) - - - - (546) (#13) - - (546) 3
Impairment loss on trade BHENFERE
receivables E# - - - (2.191) - - - 2,191 - - - 2,191
Forfeiture of deposits BTE 3,756 91,214 - - - - 3,756 91,214 - - 3,756 N214
Amounts included in the FAPBAEGE
measure ZRE
of segment assets:
Addttions to non-current segment £ RIEFERE
assets during the year NEEE 278 - 1,227,060 1,310,107 - - 1,227,338 1,310,107 - 372 1,227,338 1310479
Geographical information i [E &
The Group’s revenue from external customers and its non- REBZINRE PR R HIERENE 2= (B
current assets (other than financial instruments) are divided into BITEBRINDMEATHIE :

the following geographical areas:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets

IhRE U 2R REEE
2018 2017 2017
b L PIG S — T — —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT BT I BT T

Principal markets EEWHIS

— Hong Kong (domicile) — &8 (GEM) 729,432 1,087,393 20,632,663 19,649,965
— the PRC — 250,966 237,603 14,649 30,198

980,398 2,224,996 20,647,312 19,680,163
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the goods/services were delivered/rendered.
The geographical location of non-current assets is based on
the physical location of the assets.

Information about major customer

Revenue from customer of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group is as
follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

TEREFR)
EEZABEEDERRHES R
MEEE - RBAEZBENEIER
BB BRI -

FREEEFRZEH
BA T 5 AR B 4 R EB 1 A 42 B B R B 4B 10%
&1t PEIPAEE

Customer A BFEA
— Property leasing —WEHEE

Year ended

BEUTBHLEEE
31/12/2018 31/12/2017
—F—N\E —T—tfF
+=A=+-8 [EEERE=
HK$’000 HK$’000
EETR BETF T
119,545 123,360!

! The corresponding revenue contributed over 10% of total revenue of
property leasing segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group did not
derive more than 10% of the Group’s total revenue from any
single customer.

FINANCE COSTS

! HEBEERYERES B RS BEB
#10% °

E_E—tFt+_A=F+—HIEFE K
SRV ARRERE - FFERNBREAEE
W 2% AR 2 10% ©

Interest charges on:
Bank loans RITEX

UTEEZMBFX:

Al & B A
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT T T
37,815 25,503
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PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. B P 4% %i B4 32 A it F1

Profit before income tax expense is arrived at after charging/

BR P15 B B 2 s R E B (GEA) T3

(crediting): E=
2018 2017
—F-N\E —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
EBETR BT T
Amortisation of properties held for Ry (M EE19)
development (note 19) 546 413
Auditor's remuneration % B AT BN & 3,260 3,059
Cost of completed properties held for BRAERAI ZEEKGE
sale recognised as expenses S EJDN 246,226 1,206,499
Depreciation of property, plant and M- BMEREZEBITE
equipment (note 18) (M 3E18) 2,987 2,250
Employee compensation expense EERMAL (BIEESHE
(including Directors’ remuneration and K TE #R A AR AS) (M 5E12)
defined contribution cost) (note 12) 131,507 158,206
Impairment loss on trade receivables* B 5 & YRR R B s 1
(note 21) (M zE21) - 2,191
Minimum operating lease charges RELERES N 1,277 1,115
Gross rental income from investment KEWMEHS WA LR
properties (540,040) (508,000)
Less: Direct operating expense arising WEEHESWAZKE
from investment properties that MEMEEZEE
generated rental income &L 29,234 38,009
Less: Direct operating expense arising B AEERSWAZEE
from investment properties that VMEmMEE B
did not generate rental income LT 268 319
(510,538) (469,672)

*

Included in other gains and losses

*

EEREREMKREREEA
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1. EEREREEBEZNE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (@ EEMW£
The emoluments paid or payable to the Directors were ENRENESMESIT:
as follows:
Retirement
Performance benefits
Salaries and related scheme
Fee allowances bonuses  contributions Total
BHhE
He EHEREN REARTL sHEIER @t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
BRI BETRT EETR EETT EETR
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-T-\E
+ZA=+-BLEE
Executive directors WTEE
Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace Be%at 50 5,520 9,203 18 14,791
Ms. Chan Wai Ling BREZ/E 50 4,176 8,403 18 12,647
Mr. Kong Siu Man Kenny (resigned on BRAREER=ZZ—N\F
29 August 2018) NAZThAER) 33 2,091 - 12 2,136
Independent non-executive directors BUEHTES
Mr. Chan Kai Nang WX Bge £ A& 173 - - - 173
Mr. Pao Ping Wing HMEEE 150 - - - 150
Mr. Ng Chi Keung RERELE 150 - - - 150
606 11,787 17,606 48 30,047
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-S-t&
+ZRA=+-HLEE
Executive directors WTEE
Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace EBekut 50 5,520 15,710 18 21,298
Ms. Chan Wai Ling REZ/E 50 4176 14,910 18 19,154
Mr. Kong Siu Man Kenny BRREE 50 3,246 300 18 3,614
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Mr. Chan Kai Nang WR Rge £ A& 158 - - - 158
Mr. Pao Ping Wing B EE 137 - - - 137
Mr. Ng Chi Keung RERELE 137 - - - 137
582 12,942 30,920 54 44,498
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as Directors.

Certain executive Directors are entitled to bonus
payments which are determined in accordance with the
performance of the Group.

There is no chief executive appointed for both years.

There were no arrangements under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year (2017: nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included three (2017: three)
Directors, whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments paid to the
remaining two (2017: two) individuals during the year are
as follows:

1.

B IV B R R

EEREREEEZNE (E)

(a)

(b)

Basic salaries, bonuses and other
benefits H b 18 F
Performance-related bonuses FIRMEBEAT

EAXFHE AR

Pension costs — defined contribution R K& B K — F B4 K

plan & &1

EENE ()
EIATEEHE IR BEFEELAR
A RAKEEHEZ REMST - £
BYBTESTHES IR RFRELE
BEEMXAT -

ETHTESHREINERAS
BRIRETE AL~

1 F [ 19 B RAETTERAREL

FAMBEMLHESESATRILR
RRFBRREMHIM (=T —LF:
&) o

AfisaE#HAL

AEE  AEEIURSHEALEE
“HRCELEFZREFHF
ZW e RN Lt 2 5Hf o FREER
ME(CE—tF MB)ALTZHE
LI

2018 2017
—EB-N\EF —T—tfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT ST

6,781 4,035
8,203 16,934
18 36

15,002 21,005
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 1. EEREREEEBEZM(E)
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) AfimEHALE)
The emoluments of the remaining two (2017: two) EHMA(CE—tF - MB)ALZ
individuals fell within the following bands: B < 5 48 Bl a0

Number of individuals

A
2018 2017
ZEB-N\E —F—+F
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 78 2 500,0017T —
% #:3,000,0007T - ’
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 75 #53,500,0017T —
75 4,000,0007T 1 -
HK$11,000,001 — HK$11,500,000 75 #11,000,0017T —
78 #11,500,0007T 1 _
HK$18,000,001 — HK$18,500,000 78 #£18,000,0017T —
% #18,500,0007T - ’
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors BHE-Z—\FER=Z—+tF+=A
or any of five highest paid individuals as an inducement =T —BHIEMEFESSF  AEEH
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for ERESNANERHFALERN
loss of office and no Director waived or agreed to waive THME - ERREENAREER
any emoluments during each of the two years ended 31 RIMAREE R kB 2 m
December 2018 and 2017. B BfimEEHRPRABEREEM
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12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 12. EERFFAZ(BIEEENSE)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

2018 2017
—B-N\E¥ —F—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETR BT T

Salaries and wages (including Directors’ FekIBEBEEEEMS)

remuneration) and bonus NIt 125,646 152,961
Pension costs — defined contribution RIRE K A— s ERE S
plans (note) (M 3E) 3,487 2,742
Staff welfare = 2,374 2,508
131,507 158,206
Note: B 5
The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit plan under AEBERBARHMELES ([BES ] FTEEE - &
the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) Schemes Ordinance, for all of its ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬂ_/*\ﬁ%"ﬂﬂﬁﬁi FrElZES ‘“ﬁm%’ﬁﬁi\m
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. BRABHGE - KR DIREEEAFEZES
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic FTE -
salaries.
The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the PRC are AEBERPREECEZHBARZIEEAELEE T
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local BRFEEZHRREARSTE - ZEWNBARERE
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a BHEETEA AP RBARSFTEIFER -

certain percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme.
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13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

13. FIR#HHAEAX

2018 2017
—E-0\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR PR T
Hong Kong Profits Tax: BEMEH:
Tax for the year (note (a)) R4 E B A (K 5 (@) 56,904 106,299
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BAFE(BEEH),
BETR (39,614) 25,066
17,290 131,365
PRC Enterprise Income Tax: B ZEMET:
Tax for the year (note (b)) NG 2 B 18 (M 3 () 19,807 1,901
Under-provision in prior years BEFEREIR 1,188 —
20,995 1,901
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (‘LAT”) AR £ (B R
(note (c)) (4 #h 32 E D (P 5% () 6,428 9,360
Deferred tax charge/(credit) (note 28) ELERES L (KR)
(Kt 5x28) 9,701 (41,452)
54,414 101,174
Notes: B 5

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The
Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which
introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was
signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the
following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The Directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit
for both years.

BERMEGR T \F=A-_+—HAEBL
COTER B (RN (F75H) FH ER)TE
) HEHFEHMAS - ERR=_F—/\
FZAZTNBRRDED - YRBATE -
ENSHMARAGT  EREEEREEE
CEBLAEZ SRR R8.25% » MiEB
A BT AERIZ16.5%H REH o T
A 12 A5 T P AR B AR 2 SR BB 2 i A
5 At 48 1216.5% 2 8| — T R B -

EXZRE BUNGHBARSMAERZ €
B HEREMBHRME L TEKX - MESF
& 2 B B RIS BT IR ik 51 FE R BER A =2 B
%16.56% 5T & °
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Notes: (Continued)

(0)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, all of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries were subject to PRC EIT rate of 25% (2017: 25%).

Under the Provisional Regulations of LAT (AR &£ A B H£ AN E 4 3 38
8 B 77 16 1)) effective on 1 January 1994, and the Detailed
Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on
LAT (Hr 2 A RSB & i 32 B B 17 15 51 B ie 4 BI)) ) effective
from 27 January 1995, all income from the sale or transfer of state-
owned land use rights, buildings and their attached facilities in the
PRC is subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% of the appreciation value, being the proceeds of sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including borrowing costs
and property development expenditures in relation to the gains
arising from sales of properties in the PRC effective from 1 January
2004, with an exemption provided for property sales of ordinary
residential properties (1% % (¥ =) if their appreciation values do
not exceed 20% of the sum of the total deductible items.

5 A IV R M SR

s (&)

(®)

REEZZ-N\F+_A=+—HIEFE "
REBETBEME MM E QR Z25% (ZF—
T F26%) Z RGP B EMEH -

BIER—NANMFE—B—BER 2(REA
REME -t EEHETEIRR—AN
AFEF—A-t+EtAEB (P EARKEANER
T IRERETIRAIEEMAD B =TT
ME—A—BAf EFREEEREEEEL
WiERE ZEDRERZEDZABRA
P BIR A FH30% E60% .2 REF KM L
IR E R o EEEE A E Y EATS RIE R
RAHFSE  EEERERREEMER
Bl Z2BEERARMEZERIE - HEB
EEFEZHRERERBBANKIBLBHE
20% * EBEEEEZYEHEN B LI
BEF -
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13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

13. FIRHFAX(E)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting FIEfiBEI ket aflizaBRiEFEZ
profit at applicable tax rates is as follows: HERWT :
2018 2017
—EB-N\%F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
EETR BT IT
Profit before income tax expense B P % B F X mu it F1 719,268 1,302,770
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate =B B NEH B E16.5%
of 16.5% FECHIE 118,679 214,957
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TENR 2 ER B G éﬁ 20,634 4,998
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERMZBWAZH G E (52,411) (100,676)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMIBEB BT E — 5,079
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax ~ BI@E AR 2R IBE A
losses (1,308) (16,477)
Recognition of tax losses previously not WEARERZTIAER
recognised — (83,322)
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BEFE(RREEE)
BHEIR (38,426) 25,066
Provision for LAT for the year FRN T I E TR 6,428 9,360
Tax effect of LAT deductible for PRCEIT BB 2/l f1F +
WIREMR BT E (1,061) (1,544)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ~ #£ E HENEREREE B
operating in other jurisdictions RAIZ TR E 2 B 5,483 1,425
Others Hh (3,604) (7,692)
Income tax expense FEHEAX 54,414 101,174
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14. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE)/ 14.

INCOME, NET OF TAX

The amount of tax relating to each component of other
comprehensive (expense)/income can be summarised as
follows:

2018
—E-N\f

Before tax Tax

B # A B
HK$’000 HK$’000
ERTT ERTT

ltemn that will not be reclassified to WX T H & T2 Z#

Hib 2 (FX) WA - 0k H
i

EMEM2EEX) RAS B2 HE
SEHEHMT:

2017
T 5
Net of tax Before tax Tax Net of tax
Bt BR B AT HIA BBtk
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EETR ok BETT BETT

profit or loss: DHEEE
Deficit on revaluation of buildings ~ EBFE {4 E 1B

(notes 18 and 28) (Wi 18.28) 479) 79 (400) (1,746) 288 (1,458)
Item that may be reclassified WUTHARGAREER

subsequently to profit or loss: DHEEE
Exchange (loss)/gain on translation of &5 9 % 75 2 [& i,

foreign operations (B8) /M (33,176) - (33,176) 31,079 — 31,079
Other comprehensive (expense)/ HE# 2 (%), A

income (33,655) 79 (33,576) 29,333 288 29,621
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15. DIVIDEND 15. Ik 2
(a) Dividend attributable to the year (@ FTEEZER
2018 2017
—E-N\EF TE—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETT BT T
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.20 BEAAKREETR
(2017: HK$0.20) per share BH020L(ZE—+F:
75 1#0.207T) 56,662 56,662
Final dividend of HK$0.20 (2017: HK$0.20) per share for EERE-NF=HA=-+—HE=
the year to shareholders whose names appear on the MR-Z—NAFEFRA=1T—"BRIR
register of members on 31 May 2019 was proposed by & R 2 B SRR AT AN FE AR AR B
the Directors on 21 March 2019. R B0 (ZE —+F: Bk
0.207T) °
The final dividend proposed after the reporting date have RBERHREEZRE CRARE L&
not been recognised as a liability at the reporting date. RBERHERBAR -
(b) Dividend attributable to the previous financial (b) BEMBEEZERIR  RERE
year, approved and paid during the year Bt R % At

2018 2017
—EB—N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEETFT BT T

Final dividend in respect of the previous A B F[E 2 K BfR &
financial year of HK$0.20 per share BRBEE0.20T (2T —+
(2017: final and special dividend of FRBREGREE
HK$0.20 per share and HK$1.00 per 0.207T KBl ik BB MR
share respectively) #4.007T) 56,662 339,970
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16. EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. 5 % i #l
The calculation of the earnings per share of the Company is ARG ERaFNAEERFERNRR A
based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the A A AL F R E F S #671,592,0007T
Company of HK$671,592,000 (2017: HK$1,200,781,000) and (=T —+ 4 : 5 %1,200,781,0007F) & B 5
the number of ordinary shares of 283,308,635 (2017: 17 B A% #H 283,308,635 (= FE—+4F :
283,308,635) in issue during the year. 283,308,635% ) °
The computation of diluted earnings per share does not STEEREE RS AREART 2B
assume the exercise of the Company’s employee share ERREETE  WIEAREEEZT —
options because the exercise price of these options was higher +tF+-A=+—HIEFE ZEHERE
than the average market price for shares for year ended 31 ZITEEERBRHFEHEmE-- MA - &S
December 2017. In addition, the employee share options were EBREER=ZZE—tFRRK -
lapsed in year 2017.
No diluted earnings per share for year ended 31 December HE-_Z—\FIT-A=1T—HIEFEHE
2018 was presented as there were no potential ordinary shares E2ilks! Hx T% SEamA W ERBEZT—
in issue during the year ended 31 December 2018. NE+ZA=+T—HILFETEEEITL
BT AR
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. EEME
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Fair Value AFE
As at 1 January R—A— 19,497,324 17,794,052
Additions prapN
— Purchase of units —BEEN 1,198,496 1,308,791
— Construction costs — R A 5,279 1,316
Transfer from properties for sale (note 20) ERAEFEME(H20) 45,274 301,212
Transfer to assets held for sale (note 38) EREHEEE M) (420,000) —
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) & B B R ) (MY 7E39) - (438,000)
Purchase through acquisition of subsidiaries ERWEHBAREE
(note 40) (B 540) 214,052 -
Net fair value (loss)/gain on investment BREWELNTFEEE)/
properties W g 55 (100,431) 392,004
Net fair value (loss)/gain on properties transfer ~ #) % & & A F(E (EE),/
W s FHR (587) 136,788
Exchange realignment M 5, 8 B (170) 1,161
As at 31 December W+=—HA=+—H 20,439,237 19,497,324
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group disposed
of investment properties with carrying amount of
HK$438,000,000 through a subsidiary, of which the properties
are being transferred from properties for sale with carrying
amount of HK$301,212,000 to investment properties and
resulted with a fair value gain of HK$136,788,000 upon the

transfer. Details are set out in note 39(b).

All of the Group’s investment properties are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as

investment properties.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at 31
December 2018 and 2017 by an independent qualified
professional valuer, Cushman & Wakefield Limited (“C&W”), on
market value basis which conforms with The Hong Kong

Institute of Surveyors Valuation Standard:

° The completed investment properties (whole block of
commercial building) are revalued by adopting income
capitalisation method, which involves certain estimates,
including capitalisation rates and reversionary rental

value;

° The completed investment properties (individual units
(including commercial, industrial and residential
properties) or ground floor retail properties) are revalued
based on direct comparison method, by reference to

market transactions of comparable properties; and

° Investment properties under re-development were
revalued on the re-development basis by adopting the
residual method. The value is based on the re-
development potential of the properties as if these
properties will be developed and completed in
accordance with the existing redevelopment proposal at
the date of valuation and is determined by deducting the
estimated total cost of the development, including costs
of construction, professional fee, finance costs,
associated costs and an allowance of profit that duly
reflected developer’s risk associated with the

development from the gross development value.
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BHE_ZT—+tF+-A=+—HLEFE &
SEFEBA—HBENBARLEREAESE
438,000,000t 2 & E W% - %W B A R
T {E 7 #301,212,000Tc 2 M E BT EME
EREREYE  AUREBRBEEQTF
B Y 25 76 #6136,788,0007T ° =15 & M3
39(b) °

AEBMBEREMEEURNTFEEXGE
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In determining the fair values of the investment properties, the
Group engages an independent qualified professional valuer to
perform the valuation. The management works with the
independent qualified professional valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for level 3 fair
value measurement. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the investment properties, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the Directors.

In relying on these valuations, the management has exercised
judgement and are satisfied that the methods of valuation
adopted are appropriate and reflective of the current market
conditions.

The carrying amount of the Group’s investment properties is a
level 3 fair value measurement. There were no investment
property transfers into or out of level 3 fair value measurement
during both years.

EEERENVEZATER AEEZE
BYSREAREXMGEMETHE - EHEE
EBPTABREXMEMEE  RFEIRR
FEERLEEMBERMREUER - f#
BREMELAFELRERNED  AMES
BERBHRA -

RIKFE L HER - BEEDERELHE -
WEMARA 2 EETEZBEE L RRE
BRI ©

AEBRENE 2EEE/SEIRAFE
AE-RWMEFERN UERKREVMEEHA
FBHERATEFE -
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these investment properties are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used).

Investment properties

17. BEWE(E)
TRESAANAEEZERANEZ A
T {8 (R B2 45 PR 8 8L T ) 2
EH

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Interrelationship between

held by the Group in significant unobservable

the consolidated statement Fair value as at Valuation Significant Range of significant input(s) and fair value

of financial position 31 December 2018 technique(s) unobservable input(s)  unobservable inputs measurement

RZF-\&
AEANGAMBRAR +=-A=+-H ETEFTHENEA
FEzRaNE ZAFE HERKR TETTREHR FEFTHERR2EE ATFHEABZEHAMG
HK$'000
BETT

Completed investment
properties

EERRENE

Completed investment properties 16,651,000 Income Reversionary rental HK$21 - HK$61 (2017: The higher the reversionary
(whole block of commercial (2017: 16,460,500) capitalisation value HK$21 - HK$59) per rental value, the higher the
building) method month per square foot for fair value

upper-level office/
restaurants premises;
HK$80 - HK$1,277 (2017:
HK$80 - HK$1,370) per
month per square foot for
ground floor shops

BEKRENE 16,651,000 LON-¥:N |75 EEHEE BERLE EBESH EEHEALS ATEES

(BEFXET) [ BYHREAEBATE
16,460,500) BRI (ZE—+F:
BBATEBELIT)
wHESTHRFABKOT
ZEE2TL(ZE
F BRSO ERK
1,3707T)
Capitalisation rate 2.25% - 3.5% (2017: The higher the capitalisation
2.625% - 3.50%) rate, the lower the fair value
BERc® 2.25%%3.5% (ZF— B RS - ATELE
F 1 2.625% £3.50%)

Completed investment properties 3,333,237 Direct comparison Adjustment to price per  +/~20% (2017: +/-20%) The higher the quality of
(individual units (including (2017: 2,347,824) method square foot in relation properties with reference to
commercial, industrial and to quality of comparables, the higher
residential properties) or properties (e.g. the fair value
ground floor retail properties) location, size, level

and condition with
reference to
comparables of the
properties)

ERKRENE 3,333,287 BELEE RMELEWLBT  +-20% (ZT—+5F: SRALENE EEHR
(ERIEM(BERE ITER (ZZ—+&: HEMEIMLE - +/-20%) ATEHER
EENF) AW TTENE) 2,347,824) KN BERAR)

AEEFHRER
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. BREME(E)

Investment properties Interrelationship between
held by the Group in significant unobservable
the consolidated statement Fair value as at Valuation Significant Range of significant input(s) and fair value
of financial position 31 December 2018 technique(s) unobservable input(s)  unobservable inputs measurement
RZB-N\&
AEANGAMBRAR +=-A=+-H ETEFTHENEA
ECE- P 4L/ ZATE HERKR TEFTHREHR FEFTHERR2EE ATFHEARZEHEMG
HK$'000
BETT

Investment properties under re-development

ERRENE
Other investment properties nil (2017: 455,000) Residual method Price per square foot nil (2017: HK$26,000) per The higher the price per
under square foot for office square foot, the higher the
re-development premises; fair value
nil (2017: HK$27,000 -
HK$65,000) per square
foot for shops
HiERRENS B(ZE—tF: FepE BYFARER BRENEBTHRET SFHRERMER ATE
455,000) (ZZ—+5: 8% fars)
26,0007T)

BRITSRET(ZF—
BB 00T ER

#65,0007T)

Estimated construction nil (2017: HK$4,700) per The higher the estimated
and other square foot construction and other
professional costs to professional costs, the
completion lower the fair value

EATKARRERE BFHIRER A RERAMEER
EERE (ZZ—L%: %4700 BAKS  RTESE

)

Estimated profit margin -~ nil (2017: 15%) The higher the estimated profit
required to hold and margin, the lower the fair
develop the value
investment
properties to
completion

RERBRRENEE FT(ZT—tF:15%) atFEkEs AT E
SRR F il FIEE BE
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

17. HEYE(E)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Investment properties Interrelationship between
held by the Group in significant unobservable
the consolidated statement Fair value as at Valuation Significant Range of significant input(s) and fair value
of financial position 31 December 2018 technique(s) unobservable input(s)  unobservable inputs measurement
RZE-N\E
AREARGEMBRAR +=HA=+-H TETTEREHRE
MRz RENE ZATE fEERE EETTHEHR TETTHEHRZEE AFEABZEAMR
HK$'000
BBTT
Investment properties under 455,000 Residual method Price per square foot HK$26,000 per square foot  The higher the price per
re-development (2017: 234,000) for office premises square foot, the higher the
(2017: HK$26,000 per fair value
square foot for residential
premises);
HK$27,000 - HK$65,000
(2017: HK$28,000 -
HK$35,000) per square
foot for retail properties
BERRANE 455,000(ZF—+F: FgrE BYARER BRENEBTHREE  STHRERMES ATE
234,000) 26,0007 (ZF—+ 4 21
FENEBTHRAEE
26,0007T)
DENEGTHRAEE
27,0007 & % #65,0007T
(ZB—t5: 8%
28,0007 £
#%35,0007)

Estimated construction HK$4,650 (2017: HK$3,300)  The higher the estimated
and other per square foot construction and other
professional costs to professional costs, the
completion lower the fair value

RATKARRER  BTAREK46507T A BEREMEXRA
HipEEMAK (ZZ—+ % E%3300 B RFEBE

Estimated profit margin
required to hold and
develop the
investment
properties to
completion

RENERRENEE
TR G AR

i)

18% (2017: 10%)

15% (ZZ—+F 1 10%)

The higher estimated profit
margin, the lower the fair
value

hatfEkEs AT E
B
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
There were no changes to the valuation techniques for the
investment properties during the year.

17. REYE(EF)
ERREYE T HERMY B -

ATEHEDRBLRREYNES BER
BEMS -

The fair value measurement is based on the above investment
properties’ highest and best use.

RZZE—N\F+=-—A=+—0 KAEBEEH
BR T 42 18 & 78 #14,361,450,0007C (= & —
+4F : #¥13,521,870,0007T) 2 & TR EY
KR DA & B A 28 #1,562,788,0007T (=
T — 4 ¢ 7 #1,528,120,0007T) Z SR1TE
(P 5E27) °

As at 31 December 2018, certain investment properties of the
Group with total carrying amount of HK$14,361,450,000 (2017:
HK$13,521,870,000) were pledged to secure bank loans of
HK$1,562,788,000 (2017: HK$1,528,120,000) (note 27).

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. Y1¥ - BMERRE

Furniture,

Leasehold Leasehold fixtures and Motor

ELGE Buildings improvements equipment vehicles Total

HE KA RE

Year ended 31 December 2018 EHE-F—/\ 4§
+=-A=+—-BLEE

HELH
HK$°000
ERTT

¥
HK$’000
ERTRT

MERE Rk AE BHE
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
ERTR E%TT ERTR ERTR

Opening net carrying amount FEEREEE 64,254 40,779 100 1,211 1,116 107,460
Additions 1R - - 22,127 410 1,026 23,563
Deficit on revaluation (note 14) EffEE T E14) - (479) - - = (479)
Disposals HE - - - - (289) (289)
Depreciation e (86) (922) (1,631) (121) (227) (2,987)
Exchange realignment B 5 R 8 - - - 31 (81) (50)
Closing net carrying amount FREE@FE 64,168 39,378 20,596 1,531 1,545 127,218
As at 31 December 2018 RZB—N\f§
+=HA=+-—H

Cost/Valuation R/ A 65,028 39,378 35,699 13,036 3,873 157,014
Accumulated depreciation 2t E (860) - (15,103) (11,505) (2,328) (29,796)
Net carrying amount REFE 64,168 39,378 20,596 1,531 1,545 127,218
Analysis of cost/valuation B/ EENT
At cost BEA 65,028 - 35,699 13,036 3,873 117,636
At professional valuation REEME - 39,378 - - - 39,378

65,028 39,378 35,699 13,036 3,873 157,014
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£ e — —3
18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W% W E R (&)
(Continued)
Furniture,
Leasehold Leasehold fixtures and Motor
lands Buildings  improvements equipment vehicles Total
HE &M KB
HELH EF MEEE ES:] b k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BETT BT BETT
Year ended 31 December2017 EHE-F—+%
+-A=+—-HLEE
Opening net carrying amount FHEEEE 64,333 43,379 100 3,262 1,044 112,118
Additions BN - - - 28 344 372
Deficit on revaluation (note 14) EEEE (14 - (1,746) - — - (1,746)
Disposals d& - - - (1,062) ®) (1,067)
Depreciation e (79) (854) — (1,028) (289) (2,250)
Exchange realignment fE B - - - 11 22 33
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 64,254 40,779 100 1,211 1,116 107,460
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZT—+t%
+ZH=+—-H
Cost/Valuation A/ 4 {E 65,027 40,779 13,822 11,820 3,451 134,899
Accumulated depreciation ZEtmE (773) - (13,722) (10,609) (2,335) (27,439)
Net carrying amount IEEFE 64,254 40,779 100 1,211 1116 107,460
Analysis of cost/valuation BRE/EESHT
At cost B A 65,027 - 13,822 11,820 3,451 94,120
At professional valuation REEME - 40,779 - - - 40,779
65,027 40,779 13,822 11,820 3,451 134,899
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W% - K E AR (4E)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s buildings in Hong Kong
are stated at valuation of HK$39,378,000 (2017:
HK$40,779,000). The Group’s buildings were revalued by C&W
based on net replacement cost method. For the year ended 31
December 2018, a revaluation loss of approximately
HK$479,000 (2017: HK$1,746,000) had been recognised in
asset revaluation reserve.

As at 31 December 2018, leasehold land and buildings of the
Group with carrying amount of HK$102,026,000 (2017:
HK$103,654,000) were pledged to secure bank loans of the
Group (note 27).

The fair value of the Group’s owner-occupied buildings is a
level 3 recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of the
opening and closing fair value balance is provided below.

R-B-—NE+-A=1+—08 KX&EERE
75 2 18 = DA (B 75 139,378,000 (- & —
+ & : B #40,779,0007T) 7l BR - NEE 2
BFHBERTRFEERNEER B
ECE N\F+t_A=t—"BILEEEGHE
B4 B479,000 0 (Z F — £ F: B &
1,746,000 EFERA B EEHFEE °

RZBE—N\FE+ZA=1+—01  "EFER
IR E 1B A7 #102,026,0007C (- B —+ 4
785 1103,654,0007T) 2 T & £t RIEF LA
BAEEZBITER(HE27) »

AEBERBFIAFER/FRIMLEER
FEME - FORFRRATFEEHRZHE
;I -

2018 2017
—T-N\E§ —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETR PR T
Opening balance (level 3 recurring FHE S (FEIREE M
fair value) ~E) 40,779 43,379
Depreciation e (922) (854)
Deficit on revaluation of properties held EHFBEERAYE ZFIE
for own use (479) (1,746)
Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair FIREH(EIMEE M
value) NS 39,378 40,779
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In determining the fair values of the buildings, the Group
engages an independent qualified professional valuer to
perform the valuation. The management works with the
independent qualified professional valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for level 3 fair
value measurement. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the investment properties, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the Directors.

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual
use.

The following table gives information about how the fair values

of these buildings are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used).

Building

EEEBTATER AEEEERBEY
AEREXMAEMETHE - EEEEE
VAEEBEMBRMAEMA EREIRDFER
ENEEEZHERMREE - HRED
ERNTFEEREREY  BEREERS
MEREA o

NFEFEDNEREAYEZ &S RRE
Mg BEERMEITEER -

TR ERMAEEAXFETAFENR
B2 P E R ES MR BB ZEF -

Interrelationship between
significant unobservable

held by the Group measured Fair value as at Valuation Significant Range of significant input(s) and fair value
at revaluation model 31 December 2018 technique(s) unobservable input(s) unobservable inputs measurement
RZF-\&
AREBFRER +=-A=+-H FETTHEHERE
BEHEZETF ZAFE HERHE TEFTHREHRE TEFTHREHHEE AFEHEZEAMG
HK$'000
BETT
Owner-occupied buildings 39,378 (2017: 40,779)  Net replacement cost  Building replacement cost HK$4,300 per square feet The higher the building

per square feet
BRETF 39378(ZF—+F: FEERK BYAREFEEM K
40,779)
Note: Building replacement cost per square feet is determined with B 7 -

reference to market comparables of constructing works, taking into
account of use, location and other individual factors such as total
floor level and type of structure.

(2017: HK$4,300) (note)

BYFRBEL300L(ZF
—+F: B%43007T)
G

replacement cost per feet
with reference to
comparables, the higher
the fair value
ZRALBNEZERETF
FERAME  ATEH

=

BYIRETEEXRATIZEMIS LAILLR

ZRETIEMEE -

Bk AE - BN

RpgERBEYBAEEMENRZE -
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19. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 19. FERYE

2018 2017
—E—-N\E —
HK$°000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Year ended 31 December BE+-A=+—HILEE
Opening net carrying amount FYEREFE 18,434 18,026
Amortisation B8y (546) (413)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 8 B (583) 821
Closing net carrying amount FHREMFE 17,305 18,434
As at 31 December R+=-—A=+—H
Cost X 2R 22,833 23,625
Accumulated amortisation RET#H (5,528) (5,191)
Net carrying amount REFE 17,305 18,434
Properties held for development represents certain agricultural FERRVERCLEHETUNREETAR
lands situated in New Territories, Hong Kong and the PRC FRE2AETEXAN  DREEFHRNIE
under operating leases and are amortised on a straight-line BHREALEEN -

basis over the lease terms.
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20. PROPERTIES FOR SALE 20.

2018 2017

—E—N\E —T—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

EETR BT T

Carrying amount as at 1 January R—A—BZEEAE 1,407,876 2,617,495
Additions R 146,229 268,801
Disposals H& (246,226) (1,206,449)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) & B8 2 7] (B 7£39) (288,450) —

Transfer to investment properties R IR EYE(MF17)

(note 17) (45,274) (301,212)
Exchange realignment b H & (19,300) 29,241
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+ZA=+—BZKAA 954,855 1,407,876

2018 2017

—E-0\E -

HK$’000 HK$'000

EETR BT T

Completed properties for sale EEXEFEWE 146,898 215,669
Properties under development HTEBRRTYE

for sale 807,957 1,192,207
Carrying amount as at 31 December RT—A=+—HZEBE 954,855 1,407,876

As at 31 December 2018, properties for sale of R=ZE—N\F+_A=+—H HFEVES

HK$544,772,000 (2017: HK$1,015,113,000) represent the
carrying amount of the properties expected to be completed
over one year from the end of the reporting period and the
remaining carrying amounts represent the properties to be
completed within one year from the end of the reporting period.

#&544,772,0007L(= T — £ F: & &
1,015,113,0007T) 4 T8 B % 70 ¥ 5 HA SR #B 51
BR—FRT2YEZERE  HHER
BEAEHERNREPRBT —FART 2

Y2 FREE -
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As at 31 December 2018, included in the completed properties
for sale was a joint operation project amounting to
HK$7,217,000 (2017: HK$17,144,000) to jointly develop a
property site for residential purpose located at 111 Lai Yin
Street and 2-12 Jones Street, Tai Hang, Hong Kong in which
the Group has a 20.24% equity interest. In 2014, the Directors
determined that the Group’s share of the completed units
would be put up for sale when completed and, accordingly,
reclassified its proportionate share of the interest in this
property development from investment properties under
construction to properties under development for sale. The
Group bears a proportionate share of the joint operation’s
assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. The occupation
permit was released by the Buildings Department during the
year ended 31 December 2016. During the year ended 31
December 2018, the properties for sale under the joint
operation started to sell and recorded a revenue of
HK$19,754,000 (2017: HK$268,357,000) and cost of properties
for sale of HK$12,309,000 (2017: HK$202,580,000).

R_ZT—N\F+_A=1+—H BEXFE
Y3 A —I8 5 BB 7,217,000 (Z T —+
F B ¥17144,0000) 2 & ETHE  LAHKF
FE—ELRESANEEHIZENHRLE
TH2E 1250 EEE AR 2 WEME - Ep
REEHEF20.24% 2 JiiE o INZZ—PU4F -
EEREAEENDHZEEKEMBRE
BRERE - Bt - AEEEE IR RS
ZYERRBEES AEERREVES
FOBEEFERETYE - AEBAER
LLREEEEXBZEE  BE - WERK
Y EFERBE_T— A E+_-A=
T—HLEFERBELAEHFUE - REE
T )\F+-_A=t—HILEFERN &%
EBT2HEMERGBHES  THEBKRES
& 19,754,000 (= & — £ F: B K
268,357,0007T) & ¥ % H & K &N B K
12,309,000t (= & — + F: & K
202,580,0007T) °
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21. BESREMBKRIE B

RECEIVABLES B
2018 2017
—E—N\EF —ET—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
T IT BET T
Current assets: BB E -
Trade receivables 5 W FIA
— services — iR7% 8,947 7,837
— rental receivables — RS 13,332 12,604
Total trade receivables BRI GRIARRE 22,279 20,441
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEBERE (244) (765)
Total trade receivables, net SR IBREE  FH 22,035 19,676
Other receivables, utility deposits and HEib e RE « AR
prepayment, net of provision for & RIBFIE - R
impairment loss VoREN kiR A 114,104 92,671
Loan receivables (Note) FEUWE (M aE) 5,053 1,457
119,157 94,128
Total trade and other receivables DEARDEECES M
categorised as current assets H b e R TE 4258 141,192 113,804
Non-current assets: FETB A E -
Loan receivables (Note) FEWE (M) 32,756 36,894
173,948 150,698
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21. B RHMEWRIE FEI

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018, trade
receivables from contracts with customers under HKFRS 15
amounted to HK$8,947,000 and HK$7,837,000 respectively.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, based on invoice dates,
the ageing analysis of the trade receivables, net of allowance
for credit losses, was the following:

BER(E)
RZEBE—N\FE+-_A=+—HBE=_Z—N\&F
—HA—R ' BIEBE B HREERFE155 5K
BERFEHNZESRIRZKE D B BB
8,947,0007T M /& #£7,837,0007T °

KRB \FR_ZB—+F+-A=+—H
REZZEH  BHREFBENREER
BRERZEREINEIINT :

2018 2017

—E—)\F —E— 4

HK$’000 HK$'000

T I BETF T

0-30 days 0£30K 8,130 9,144
31-90 days 31E90K 9,385 6,018
91-180 days 91E180K 3,276 1,890
Over 180 days B E180K 1,244 2,624
Total trade receivables, net SR FIBREE  FH 22,035 19,676

Normally, other than those property leasing rental receivables
which are secured by rental deposits, the Group does not
obtain collateral from other customers.

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$22,035,000 which are past due as at the
reporting date. Out of the past due balances, HK$4,520,000
has been past due 90 days or more and is not considered as
in default as these debtors have a good business relationship
with the Group and recurring overdue records of these debtors
with satisfactory settlement history.

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables directly.

—BmE RUEHSRSBERZZEME
HEREKHESIHN AEEITSREMES
U ER L

RZBE—N\FE+—A=1+—H KEFEZZ
SR FBAEHEERRSAHE AR
418 76 22,035,000 70 Z ETEA ° £ 81 HA
R 78 4,520,000 B 8 HI90 K B A
EMEREEBEY  RARZSEEBA
BEAREEBROTXEBKHER  MZIFEBA
HES AR EERIIE 268 -

BB SRR BIERENEERC
8% BRIEAKEE MU E % EFRIE Z A6
HRE - EZBERAT  BESREEER
B 5 & YR o
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES/LOAN  21.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

ESRHEMEWKRIE W

RECEIVABLES (Continued) B (&)
The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts during the REE-—ZT—+F+-—A=+—HILFE -
year ended 31 December 2017 are as follows: FARKREEZEHOT :
HK$'000
BT T
As at 1 January 2017 R-—ZZE—+F—HA—H 3,185
Add: Impairment loss (note 10) o R E & 18 5210) 2,191
Write-off 1 85 @,611)
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZZE—tF+-A=+—H 765

As at 31 December 2017, included in the allowance for
doubtful debts are individually impaired trade receivables. The
individually impaired trade receivables related to invoices that
were outstanding for more than one year and the management
assessed that none of these balances are expected to be
recovered.

Trade receivables that are not impaired as at 31 December
2017 are as follows:

R-ZTE—+E+-_A=+—H REEHE
BIEENESREK KB ZRE - ARES
FERRIBZ REEFHERZN —F2BE
MERETEERN AR EZSEHER

KoE—tE+-A=+—ALMAES
B3R KA

2017

—E—+F

HK$'000

ok

Not past due R 40 B 13,764

Less than 90 days past due B0 H DR 90K 2,724
Past due more than 90 days but BIHA % A0 K B D M4

less than 1 year 812

Past due more than 1 year B B % A 2,376

As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H 19,676
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Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits for the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in note 41.2(b).

Note:

As at 31 December 2018, loan receivables included amounts of
HK$4,000,000 (2017: nil) which are secured, interest-bearing at 2.5% per
annum (2017: nil) and repayable within 1 year from reporting date. The
remaining loan receivables included amounts of HK$33,809,000 (2017:
HK$38,351,000) which are secured, interest-bearing at HK$ Best Lending
Rate minus 2% to 2.5% per annum (2017: 2% to 2.5% per annum) for the
first 36 months from the date of loan drawdown and thereafter at the HK$
Best Lending Rate. The loans were repayable in 216 to 360 monthly
instalments (2017: 216 to 360 monthly instalments) with the final instalment
payable in year 2035 to 2048 (2017: year 2035 to 2047). As at 31
December 2018, loan receivables of HK$12,939,000 (2017:
HK$20,570,000) could be early terminated by the borrowers at the
principal and accrued interest after 60 months after drawndown date.

The current portion of HK$5,053,000 (2017: HK$1,457,000) which is
expected to be recovered within one year and classified as current assets
while the balance of HK$32,756,000 (2017: HK$36,894,000) classified as
non-current assets.

No loan receivables are past due as at 31 December 2018 and 2017. The
loan receivables are secured by second mortgage of the properties
located in Hong Kong. The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the
properties in the absence of default by the borrower. There has not been
any significant changes in the quality of the collateral held for the loans
receivables. Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in note 41.2(b).

HE-Z—)\F+_A=+—HIFEEZH
mm B H W ERIE M A& 2 R E T
HEFEH <Bﬁ FT41.2(0) °

=
=

R-ZFE—N\F+-_A=1+—0 EREZEEZE
/ﬁ\/%?fﬁ4,OOO,OOOTE(—’*’_JC¢ vk -]

CHEAERIE  HoSEZEFEHE(ZE—+
i #m) WARBEEHEt —FREE - Eﬁ%
Féuéz,% KB HE % £ 4 H# #33,809,0007T (=

| 7B #£38,351,0007T) 2 £ 58 - ﬁ@ﬁ%%ﬁ/‘%ﬁﬁ
Tﬁﬁ F\kﬁﬁh BEffE 36 AR B RESRE
EfRBEE25E(ZE—+F :2BE25E)2
FENRHE  HERBESESEHENZHNE - A
AE R D216E3608 (ZZT — 4 : 216360851 &
AER ZE—HERER_ZT=AFEZ_ZFTH/)\
ESN(CE—tF T RFEE_TOLF)-
RZE-—N\FE+_A=+—H0 EREZRBE
12,939,000t (= Z —-£4F : ##20,570,0007T) Al F
BRARIE A B HE51601E A & IEAS & &7
BEREBKIE -

FEHA R —E R E Z BV EF 5 78 #5,053,0007T (=
T— L4 B H1,457,000T) DR AR EE
2 75 #532,756,0007T (= F — £ 4F : 4 #36,894,000
E)/\*E%;E//Ibib;ﬁéo

R-ZB-N\FEk_Z—tF+_A=t—BHE"D
E‘ﬁﬁﬂ&%ﬁ FEH&E RIARLRN BB 2 W E 12 1E
HAR - MERALEEL  AEBE A ERE R
ME-RERERFEZERR2EEL EEM
EARY BE_FT/\Ft_A=+—"BLLFE
ZRAR RT h FE B B R MY iE41.2(0) ©
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Structured bank deposits of HK$63,977,000 (2017:
HK$106,559,000) are placed with a bank in the PRC and
contain embedded derivatives which returns are determined by
reference to the return of the underlying portfolio of listed
shares invested by the bank and the duration of deposits
placed. The deposits could be withdrawn at the Group’s
discretion and are subject to early termination option of the
issuing bank at the price of the principal outstanding plus the
return of underlying portfolio of listing shares up to the date of
withdrawal/early termination. Annual coupon rate varies from
annual rate of 2.81% to 4.20% (2017: 1.93% to 3.80%),

depending on the duration of the deposits placed.

Structured bank deposits of HK$28,466,000 (2017: nil) are
placed with a bank in the PRC with maturity of less than three
months and certain embedded derivative which return are
determined by reference of foreign exchange rate. The
deposits are subject to early termination option of the issue
bank or by mutual agreement. Annual coupon rate varies from
1.1% to 4.45%, depending on the actual foreign exchange rate.

The structured bank deposits are designated as FVTPL at
initial recognition under HKAS 39. Upon application of HKFRS
9, the structured bank deposits are reclassified to financial
assets at FVTPL because their contractual cash flows do not
represent solely the payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at FVTPL as at 31 December 2018 and the
structured bank deposits as at 31 December 2017 are stated
at fair values based on valuation provided by the issuing bank.

The fair value measurements are categorised to Level 2.

This represented deposits from buyers in connection with pre-

sales of properties for sale situated in Hong Kong.
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4518 1 SR 1T 1F B 1563,977,000T (& —
+ & : B ¥106,559,0007T) 17 A AR B — E
BIT  WEESHRARNTELR - HEHTY
2ERTRAZHBLETRGHAERER K
GRFHMET - AEEAPBEREFR
MERAIMETRITEEEEZRN R
A4 IFHEAZ R EEAS S INFERE EMR
BHEEEH 2 BRIEMKILE - SFEAEF
RN F2.81%24.20% (=T — 4 : 1.93%
£3.80%) % - BFHFHRFEHME °

4 18 1 R 17 17 71048 528,466,000 (= Z —
tF E)FRAPE—FERT - BER A
R=@ER WBsEETHRAXITELL
HERIH2EINEERE T - BEFHA
LEH R BABTITRITEZRRAIKLE -
BEZEHNRENT11%EL45%TE - BT
BB HNEE M 5E o

REEE S ERIFEIN  ABIERTHE
AR ERKEERSRAFEFAR
i o BABBMBHRELIFEIREK - AR
BBUERTERZAOBRSREL TR
BEIXNAERREERASNE  Hit&
BURTEREFDBEAEAFEFAR
B HIBEE °

R-ZBE-N\E+-A=+—HBRAFEEHA
BRZUBEERN-_Z—tF&+_A=
T—BZEBERITEIRERTEITIR
HZHERATEYE - AFEFEDE
BE2H o

EREERREMREBZFEMERA
BERZEE -
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24. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/SHORT- 24. TRHERITHER EHRTHE
TERM BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND CASH ®OBRERELEEEY
EQUIVALENTS
The cash and bank balances of the Group was summarised as AEB RS RBITEBIBENT
follows:
2018 2017
—E—-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT IT
Restricted bank deposits SIRHIRITIER 74,568 57,993
Short-term bank deposits with original REBABH=EAZ
maturity over three months HERITER 575,000 480,055
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 186,238 666,895
Total cash and bank balances Re RRITHERERE 835,806 1,204,943
Restricted bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents earn ZREBITFRAALBERBESFEDMR
interest at floating rates based on the daily bank deposit rates. BEBRITT AR IR ZEF EREF B -
The Group’s restricted bank deposits of approximately ANE B 2 2 PR B SR 1717 3R 4078 74,568,000
HK$74,568,000 (2017: HK$57,993,000) which was restricted TL(ZZ —t F : B ¥57,993,0007T) T3 BR

for the purpose of construction related payments.

ERETRMEBNR A -

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, short-term bank deposits R=B—\FR_ZE—+F+-_A=1+—1 "
with original maturity over three months were placed up till 1 REBABBE=ZHEAZEHARTH
year depending on the immediate cash requirement of the RIERFHRE—F  RIEAEE ZAIHE
Group, and earned fixed-rate interest at respective time ReEZBRKME WIERSB 2 EBERFE
deposits rates ranging from 2.00% to 2.90% (2017: 0.50% to M FE2.00%E2.90% (—F—+tF: 0.50% =

1.45%) per annum.

1.45%) BERE EF K 2 F| 8. »

Included in cash and cash equivalents of the Group is AAREERERREFBMATFHAF
HK$91,685,000 (2017: HK$81,799,000) of bank balances Bl % fH 8R 17 A9 3R 17 45 #2%8 191,685,000
denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”) placed with banks in the (ZZ—tF : #%81,799,0007T) 2 A R#
PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Under the TARBDRITHES - AREIWIETER R
PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and 7 B - RIEH 2 HNEE KO K 4
Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment of E SERMESTERT AEEEEL
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to MR EITINEZETR 2 RITUA RN i
exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks that are N o

authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

The Directors considered that the fair value of the cash and EERR LekREeFEBY AT EHA
cash equivalents is not materially different from their carrying REBETESEAER -

amount.
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24. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/SHORT- 24,

TERM BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

In the course of business, certain bank accounts were opened
and held in the name of certain subsidiaries in form of trust on
behalf of third parties to whom these subsidiaries provided
building management services. As at the reporting date, those
bank balances held in form of trust on behalf of third parties
and were not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group amounted to HK$53,707,000 (2017:

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

ZRHRITHER BHRT
;BERESEEYM@E)

REBBREP  ETHBRARNEZRNR
FxH(HBRAMEREEFEEREZ
ADUEREARZRFTES THRITE

F o RBEBE - %S5 AE B 53,707,000
TT(ZZ— 4 : B#44,715,0007T) Z R 1T
ERTAERFEARE=ZFEE LER
REBZERAUBHRERATER o

HK$44,715,000).
25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. B R HMEFRIE

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETR BT IT
Trade payables 2 SN FKIA 20,977 24,035
Receipt in advance T8 U FIE 7,605 4,065

Deposits received on disposal of HEMBRAR 2B WIES
subsidiaries (note 38) (M 5£38) 55,353 —
Rental deposits received BEWHEE RS 173,362 164,361
Accruals on construction works ERETIRERTFA 219,827 183,744

Other accrued expenses and other HEthEFERR

payables H b JE T BB 142,851 125,426
619,975 501,631

Trade payables had credit periods ranging from 30 to 60 days.
Based on invoice dates, the ageing analysis of trade payables
was the following:

BHRMNFIBZEERNFI0E60K - R
BEZAH  BHRARBEZREDITE
(0p N

2018 2017

—E—N\EF Tt F

HK$’000 HK$'000

EETR AT IT

0-30 days 0230k 1,214 22,466
31-60 days 31E60K 106 126
Over 90 days B 1BO0K 19,657 1,443
Total trade payables B EMNRKIARE 20,977 24,035
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26. DEPOSITS RECEIVED IN ADVANCE/ 26. FEMEIE EHEE

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

As detailed in note 2, deposits received in advance were ZHt oM - R E AN RS ERE
reclassified to contract liabilities as at 1 January 2018 upon 155318 - BUKRGI€ER=F—N\F—H—H

application of HKFRS 15.

ENOBREGHNAE-

31 December 1 January
2018 2018*
—E-0\E —ZE-N\F
+=-—HA=+—H —H—8*
HK$’000 HK$’000
EETR BT T

Deposits received in advance associated

ERBREUNTIMEZ

with pre-sale of properties for sale HFEMEZBRETS
situated in:
— Hong Kong — &8 20,436 42,927
— PRC — 134,033 249,806
154,469 292,733
* These amounts in the column are after the adjustment from the * WAZZELENEARSHEREERE
application of HKFRS 15. 15RIEFRMGZEH °
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, deposits received in AEBR_ZE—\FER=T—tF+=-A=
advance received by Group for the disposal of properties are + AR ERERNFEHRBT —FNR
expected to be completed and sold within one year from the BT REEZYEBRES °

end of the reporting period.
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26. DEPOSITS RECEIVED IN ADVANCE/
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward
contract liabilities and how much relates to performance
obligations that were satisfied in prior periods.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

26. AR ® AHERE)

TRINTAFEEREEANARER 2
ReBENRERBEHBBTCROEE
HEZ S -

Sales of
completed
properties for
sale

For the year
ended

31 December
2018

HESER
HEYE
BE-F—N\f
+=HA=+—H
IEEE
HK$’000
BETIT

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year

SAFHVEHNEBEEB ZEER
W = 227,570

Revenue to be recognised from unsatisfied performance
obligations

BRBITEOEETSTHR K
% 254,546

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

The Group receives 10% to 30% of the contract amount as
deposits from customers when they sign the sale and
purchase agreement. However, depending on market
conditions, the Group may offer customers a discount
compared to the listed sales price, provided that the
customers agree to pay the balance of the consideration early
while construction is still ongoing. The deposits result in
contract liabilities being recognised throughout the property
construction period until the customer obtains control of the
completed properties for sale.

YEERRANERSE 2 BINRIER
mF

AEBEFEFEEEEHEFUDNANE
BZ10%EI0%IERTPRIE A - A&
BRIt BTN - B EBREPIEH
- AREEFPRABEEZETRDNEL
THREEXNRESRE - ZFITTER
EEBRDEZENRAAEREGNEE &
ERPRBCERGENEZEHIRAL -
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27. BORROWINGS 27. &
2018 2017
—E-N\¥ —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
EETRT BT T
Current liabilities mEAE
Bank loans — secured RITER—FEIF 1,067,765 1,528,120
Non-current liabilities FEmB AR
Bank loans — secured IRITE R —HIHEE 495,023 —
1,562,788 1,528,120
Carrying amount of bank loans repayable  RIEE R BEFTEHTETER
based on the scheduled repayment AHAfEE R 2 IRITERER
dates set out in the loan agreements: H1A
Within one year —FR 371,065 —
More than one year, but not exceeding —FUEFEAEBBAMF
two years 21,065 —
More than two years, but not MEN BT BBRAF
exceeding five years 473,958 —
866,088 —
Carrying amount of bank loans that BIERERERBERGIR
contain a repayable on demand clause RBERE)BREES Tz?z’; B3
(shown under current liabilities) but FrETEEERPHEREE
repayable based on the scheduled ZIRITEREEE
repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements:
Within one year —FRA 546,800 481,420
More than one year, but not exceeding —F U BB IBMRF
two years 149,900 896,300
More than two years, but not ME BB BERF
exceeding five years - 149,900
696,700 1,528,120
Total bank loans RITERBE 1,562,788 1,528,120
Carrying amount of bank loans matured P — G A B H s B R iR 2K
within one year or those contain a EEBGRCIRITERZE
repayment on demand clause (shown HEGIREEARE)
under current liabilities) (1,067,765) (1,528,120)
Amount shown under non-current FRBEEMI R
liabilities 495,023 —
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27. BORROWINGS (Continued)
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, bank loans are secured by
certain investment properties and property, plant and
equipment of the Group with a total carrying value of
approximately HK$14,463,476,000 (2017: HK$13,625,524,000)
as set out in notes 17 and 18 respectively to the consolidated
financial statements.

The analysis that shows the remaining contractual maturities of
the Group’s borrowings is set out in note 41.2(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The effective interest rates of the Group’s borrowings at the
reporting date were as follows:

RITER
—BEER

Bank loans
— HK$-denominated loans

27. 68 (&)
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REZE—NEFERZFT—tF+_A=+—
B SRITERTIUARNEEREAELN B
14,463,476,0007T (= T — + F: & &
13,625,524,0007T) 2 & T BE WM E A &Y
¥ BEKREELAER  DAHREE

BT SR MY RE178 -

BRAAKBREEZHRTANIMBZ N
FHINAR A B 7% WK MY aE41.2(0)

RBESAHPAKEBE 2ERMEMNT

2018
—E—)\f

HK$’000
EETRT

Hong Kong
Inter-bank
Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”)
+1.15% p.a. to
HIBOR+1.6% p.a.
BEHERTEZE
HE(EEBRE
HED +FEF=E
1.15% EEFE
EEZ 3}
+EFFE1.6%

2017
—T—tF
HK$’000
BT T

HIBOR+
1.30% p.a. to
HIBOR+
1.45% p.a.

FRRFEFE
+E T E1.30% FE
FBREFE
+5F M %1.45%
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28. DEFERRED TAXATION 28. IEEHIE
The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows: EERIRRE 2 &80T :

2018 2017

—E—N\E§ —T—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETIT BT T

As at 1 January ®n—HA—H 107,886 149,368

Deferred taxation charged/(credited) to: RUATIEENER GTA)Z
IR IERL IS -

— Profit or loss (note 13) —E % (fFEE13) 9,701 (41,452)
— Acquisition of assets (note 40) — U B8 & B (B 3%40) 24 -
— Asset revaluation reserve (note 14) —EBEEMEE(HEE4) (79) (288)
Exchange realignment M 5, B - 258

As at 31 December R+—A=+—H 117,532 107,886
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The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
and the movements during the current and prior years:
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UTARGA MR RERZ T BRE
BOBRMEREENRRAFERBEFE
P2 1F

Surplus on
revaluation
Accelerated of owner-
tax Fair value occupied
depreciation gain (note) properties Tax loss Total
mE  AFEKE EfBR
BIERE (B &%) MERNK BIERHE aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
As at 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—A—-H 81,109 61,138 721 - 149,368
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss iy =EE il VAG NI )
(note 13) 5,886 (30,577) - (16,761) #1,452)
Credit o other comprehensive FAEMZERA
income (note 14) (B 5E14) - - (288) - (288)
Exchange realignment AR 258 - - - 258
As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+F+-A=+-8 87,253 30,561 6,833 (16,761) 107,886
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss RBHEMBE/ GIA)(FF13)
(note 13) 26,793 (15,265) - (1,827) 9,701
Credit to other comprehensive FAEMPERA
income (note 14) (P 5E14) - - (79) - (79)
Acquisition of assets (note 40) Ui 88 & B (P 7240) 24 - - - 24
As at 31 December 2018 R-Z-\F+-A=1+—H 114,070 15,296 6,754 (18,588) 117,532
Note: The amount represented the taxable temporary difference arisen MicE: ZeBERERRARRESL REARL

from the fair value gain on properties upon the change of use from

the purpose of earning rentals or/and for capitalisation to sale in the

ordinary course of business which is then classified as properties

for sale.

EAEAREGRRETHEZR ANk
AP EREMEEZ BRBEREZE B
BRITDBEREEME -
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28. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 28.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings
of the PRC subsidiaries of approximately HK$95,700,000
(2017: HK$29,988,000) of which no deferred tax liabilities has
been recognised. No deferred tax liabilities have been
recognised in respect of these differences because the Group
is in a position to control the dividend policies of its
subsidiaries and the Directors considered that no dividend will
be declared by these subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.
Thus, such difference will not be reversed in the foreseeable

IRERIA(E)

RZEBE—)\F+ZA=+—H KEBEH
R B AR R DR 2 F 2 A8 RSB R =
A 48 58 478 #595,700,0007C (=T — L F ¢
78 #520,988,0007T) I £ i RIE LT A &
& ARAEBEEMTEH EWB AR Z K
BEBRRUNEEREZEHNBRARIRAR
BRTEEREE ML ERZS=HEE
RELEHIBEAE - At - BEE=EH TS
A R R B E o

future.
29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. g &
2018 2017
—B-0\E —FLF
Number of Number of
shares HK$°000 shares HK$'000
% 3 8 B BETT B EE BETT
Authorised: ET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 FREEBEBI0TL
each T3E 5,000,000,000 500,000 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEIRAR:
As at 1 January and K—A—BK
31 December +-B=+—H 283,308,635 28,331 283,308,635 28,331
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30. RESERVES 30. st
The Group XEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETIT BT
Share premium (note (a)) % 19 5 1B (Bt 5% (a)) 690,811 690,811
Capital redemption reserve (note (b)) & 7K FE 0] 4 (BT 5 (o)) 295 295
Asset revaluation reserve BEEGEE 688 1,088
Retained profits R85 A 19,691,418 19,076,488
Exchange reserve bE 5 1 (28,889) 2,564
Special reserve (note (c)) 5 B 5% 185 (B 7% (o) 1,848 1,848
Proposed final and special dividends BEAREBEERR S
(note 15(a)) (B #E15(a)) 56,662 56,662
20,412,833 19,829,756
Notes: L
(a) Share premium represents the excess of consideration received @) BfnaE@RMERRESRERTREEE

over the par value of share issued.

(b) Capital redemption reserve represents the amount equal to the par
value of the bought-back shares, and such funds transferred from
retained profits.

(©) The special reserve of the Group represented the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital issued by the
Company in exchange for the nominal value of the share capital of
the subsidiaries pursuant to the Group’s re-organisation in 1997.

Details of the movements in the above reserves are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 136
to 139 to the consolidated financial statements.

ZER -

b EBEXrAERFEEEESKEBEROEEZR
B 2FAeBRAREER

© AREZFFIREEREAEE-NAELF
BAARAREETRAEELAKEARR
AHEEZEHE -

iR E 2 B FERRN G AU REE
13621398 2 iR A Em B H K -
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RESERVES (Continued)
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30. fitfm (&)

The Company AAT
Employee Proposed
Capital share-based final and
Share  redemption  Contributed equity Retained special
premium reserve surplus reserve profits dividends Total
&% BTk BAKHR
REE EERE SBER Einfe RERH  HURE aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEtr A%t A%t BBTr A%t B%TRn BT
(note (a)) (note (o)) (note (c))
(Wsre)  (sE(w) (B3
Asat 1 January 2018 RZZ-\E-A-H 690,811 295 1,489,936 21928 555,165 339970 3,098,105
Profit for the year FREF - - - - 980 - 980
Final and special dividend paid B ZE-~ERER
for 2016 (note 15(0) AR S (&
15(0)) - - - - - (339,970) (339,970)
Proposed final dividend BE_F-+EXH
for 2017 (note 15(a)) T S (M #150) - - (56,662) - - 56,662 -
Lapse of share options BREXN - - - (21,928) 21928 - -
As at 31 December 2017 RZT—+E
+ZA=1+-H 690,811 295 1,438,274 - 578,073 56,662 2,759,115
Profit for the year ERER - - - - 832 - 832
Final and special dividend paid = B = -+ ERER
for 2017 (note 15(0) AR S (M
15()) - - - - - (56,662) (66,662)
Proposed final dividend BE_ZT-/\EXH
for 2018 (note 15(a)) TR £ (i &£ 15(a) - - (56,662) - - 56,662 -
As at 31 December 2018 RZB-NF
+ZA=1+-H 690,811 295 1,376,612 - 578,905 56,662 2,703,285
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Notes:

Share premium represents the excess of consideration received
over the par value of shares issued.

Capital redemption reserve represents the amount equal to the par
value of the bought-back shares transferred.

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange for all
the issued ordinary shares of Lucky Spark Limited (a subsidiary)
and the value of the net underlying assets of the subsidiaries
acquired. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is available for
distribution to the shareholders under certain circumstances.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend or make a
distribution out of contribution surplus if:

(1) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

2) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Bt m BRI ERRERTRMEE
ZE

EABEOREREBESER
BEZHHE °

EEROBEROE

SN R BR TH R EE{T AR ER Lucky Spark Limited
(—EXHBRR) 2 PERTL AR ZAAT
& 17 T {8 £2 By 45 B B B8 A R AR BRF & EE (B
ZEBE BEBEARE-NN—FRRDEMH
B EETHERTARB Z BHE AT
DIERTARE o AT - MBEEATER  AA
AT BB HEIRK MR ESKEL S
K :

(1)  TREHNINERTEXNEBHANT 2
1% X
@ HEAEEZAZREREIREERR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IV B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8l 2 = F —/\iF +=H=+—HI  F &

31. COMMITMENTS 31. ki
(@) Operating lease commitments (@) HEHERE
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the total future RZZE-—N\FRZZFE—tF+=ZA=
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable +—H  ASBERETAIHEELEHR
operating leases are payable by the Group as follows: ERARENzZERESOT :
2018 2017
ZF-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BT T
Within one year —FR 2,415 734
More than one year, but not —FE FETBBES
exceeding five years 4,392 —
6,807 734
The Group leases a number of properties under REBRBELEHERNEZEDME -
operating leases. Leases are negotiated for fixed terms HER—ZENF(CCE—EF: —F)
ranged from one to four years (2017: one year). None of 2 EEFHAER - SEEMELNBEHA
the leases includes contingent rentals. e o
(b) Capital commitments (b) BEBFKIE
2018 2017
—F—N\#FE —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BT T
Contracted but not provided for: ERTHME R
- Acquisition of investment — B EYE
properties 54,059 82,655
— Acquisition of properties through — FRWENB AT
acquisition of subsidiaries W BB W % - 185,000
54,059 267,655
All capital commitments are due in the coming twelve FIEEARREHRRN AR+ _EARE

months. Hf o
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32. FUTURE OPERATING LEASE 32. RREZEHERH
ARRANGEMENTS
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had future RZE-NEFR_FT—tF+HA=+—
aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable H AEERBEIAHELEHERKE
operating leases in respect of investment properties as follows: MERARMB 2z ZERB ST :
2018 2017
—F-N\%E —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BT T
Within one year —F R 404,692 337,334
More than one year, but not exceeding ~ —F LA FBERBBREF
five years 577,329 260,416
More than five years AFMNE 4,272 —
986,293 597,750
The Group leases its investment properties (note 17) under AEBEREBELEEHELHTBELEYE
operating lease arrangements which run for an initial period of (F3E17) - R —EARF (ZE—L5F
one to six years (2017: one to eight years), with an option to —ZEN\F) JEERIBESXASEEES
renew the lease terms at the expiry date or at dates as BAAAAEFREZBHER - BAKERK
mutually agreed between the Group and the respective MREABEABBNEEES - FREWK
tenants. The terms of the leases also require the tenants to pay EERARE e WA &% %3,028,0007T
rental deposits. The turnover-related rental income received — 4 : 4 ¥3,043,0007T) °
during the year amounted to HK$3,028,000 (2017:
HK$3,043,000).
33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33. HAEE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group provided guarantees
amounted to HK$337,389,000 (2017: HK$309,431,000) to
banks with respect to mortgage loans procured by the
purchasers of the Group’s properties. Such guarantees will be
released by banks upon delivery of the properties to the
purchasers and completion of the registration of the mortgage
with the relevant mortgage registration authorities or
settlement of the outstanding mortgage loan. In the opinion of
the Directors, the fair value of the financial guarantee is not
significant.

R-Z—N\F+_A=+—H AEEHAK
SEMEERMBZEBERMETRE
YR BB B H337,389,0007T (Z B —+ 4
5 #63809,431,0007T) ° ZFEERBGRIZER
NFE R I AR IR B S E BN ZIRIE
B R EE M R IRIEE KR IRITAR
bR EFRAE UBERZATFEILTE
j(o
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

34. KATZ2HMFBEIRAFTK

2018 2017
—E-)\E —E—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 HBETT BEET T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Non-current assets ERBHEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN EPNCIR =2 545,000 545,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W B B A ) 2 kI8 2,186,230 2,241,842
2,731,230 2,786,842
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H e U Z008 347 340
Tax recoverable AJ U B % 18 362 367
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEED 165 242
874 949
Current liabilities REE&RE
Amount due to a subsidiary JE I B AR 2 FUE 25 —
Accrued expenses and other payables JE =T 2 F3 & £ FE (< A 463 345
488 345
Net current assets BRBEE 386 604
Net assets BEE 2,731,616 2,787,446
EQUITY B
Share capital & A 29 28,331 28,331
Reserves R 30 2,703,285 2,759,115
Total equity EEE 2,731,616 2,787,446
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35. MBATZH#L
R_E—N\EFEF_F—+F+-_A=+—H

35. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

2018 and 2017 are as follows:

ZEEMBRABFBNOT

Particulars of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ capital/registered capital Percentage of interest
Name operation ERTRAEE/ held by the Company Principal activities
AT &H HEME EERE HREFFE FATMBRGEENIL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
EE &
2017
ZE—+F
Billion Glory Properties Hong Kong Paid-up capital HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited
EHEXBRAA EiE BRRKEEIT NERE
Bond Rising Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - — 100% 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
RBARREE REREBEZ 1T REER
3L
Castle Peak Investment Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - — 100% 100%  Property
Properties Limited development
FLBRENEBERDR  BE BERRAEEIT NEBR
CWK Investment Properties  Hong Kong Paid-up capital - - = 100%  Property
Limited of HK$1,000 development
B BAR 1,000 NEBR
Eagle Fund I L.P. Cayman Islands Limited partnership with - — —** #47%  Investment holding
capital commitment of
US$60,000,000 from
the partners
HEHE BEREAARAZS REER
60,000,0007C 2 &7
i
Eternal Bonus Group British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - — 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited US$1 each
RRERRES RERAEEE 1T REER
Fortune Together Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
RBERRR EBHARKES MEREEZEITL REER
LRk
Golden Relay Company Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited HK$100,000
SEERDA BiE B AR 7 #100,0007T NERE
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35. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. Mt BA S Z2H# % (48)

Particulars of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ capital/registered capital Percentage of interest
Name operation BRTRAEE held by the Company Principal activities
AT &HE EREL/ EERE HMEXHE FATFMBESERIL TEER
Directly Indirectly
EE &
Goldwell Property Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - — 100% 100%  Provision of building
Management Limited HK$100,000 management
service
SHMEEEBRAR BiE B &R AEH100,0007 REBFERRYE
Good Honest Properties Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited HK$10,000
HBEXBRAT EiE B&RAE%100007T NERE
Grape Trade Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - — 100% 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
EBERRES HEREBEESITL REER
LRK
Harvest Fortune Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Property investment
ikt YN BiE BRBRTERIT NERE
Keep New Investment Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property
Limited HK$1,000 development
REBEBERAA EiE B&RAE%1,0007T NEER
Lead Properties Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Property investment
BREZBRARA EiE BRRAEEIT NERE
Maxrise Construction Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Provision for
Engineering Limited construction,
repairs and
maintenance
services
RARETIRERAR B BRREBEIT RERE BER
RERSG
One Storage Management Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Mini-storage
Company Limited
ZERTEERABRAR AR BRRAEEIT HiRE
Onwell Properties Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Property investment
REEEERAF EiE BRRAEEIT NERE
Power Huge Development Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited
AEERERAF B BRREBEIT NERE
Sharp Investment Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property
Properties Limited HK$10,000 development
ERRENEBRLA BiE B AR B #10,0007 NEER
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35. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. Mt BA S Z2H# % (48)

Particulars of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ capital/registered capital Percentage of interest
Name operation ERTRAEE held by the Company Principal activities
AT ER HEMBL EERE HREXRFE FATMBHEGZERIL TEER
Directly Indirectly
EE &
2017
tE#
Sky Luck (China) Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property investment
HK$10,000
PREIGENES NG EiE BAIRAE 10,0007 NERE
Soundwill (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands 100,001,000 ordinary 100% 100% - —  Investment holding
shares of HK$1 each
EEHAREE 100,001,000 & & & & REER
BEITZERR
Soundwill Real Estate British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
(China) Limited US$1 each
cHBHEFE AR LBHARES RERABEZ 1T REER
N BB
Soundwill Capital Limited Cayman Islands 1 ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  General partner of
US$1 each Eagle Fund | L.P.
HEHE HREREEZ21ITZ Eagle Fund | LP.Z
BB EREBA
Soundwill-ALPS Asset Cayman Islands 100 ordinary shares of - - 51% 51%  Investment manager
Management Limited US$1 each of Eagle Fund |
LP.
s 100 ERABXEITL Eagle Fund I LP.Z
Ldk B
Tang Lung Investment Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - — 100% 100%  Property investment
Properties Limited HK$1,000
BEREHWERRAF Bk BRRAEE1,0007T NERE
TCP Investment Properties Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property
Limited HK$1,000 development
Bk B&RAE%1,0007T NEER
Upper Wealthy Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Property investment
FHBBRRF Bk BRRABEIT NERE
Wise Ease Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property investment
HK$10,000
HEERARA EiE B&RAE%100007T NERE
World Firm Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$200 - - 100% 100%  Property investment

BHERAA e B RAE %2007 MERE
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35. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ capital/registered capital
Name operation ERTRAEE
AT ER HMBL EERE HREXRFE
Year Glory Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1
TEARRA B BRERAEEIT
HEMUKERNEESE  PRC Registered capital of
BRAE" RMB25,000,000
H &R
AR #25,000,0007C
EESHEHERR PRC Registered capital of
BRAE" RMB30,000,000
i BallE-EN
AR #30,000,0007T
GETRERE PRC Registered capital of
BRAE" RMB23,000,000
H HMER
AR #23,000,0007C
Notes:

ok

These subsidiaries were established in the PRC as limited liability
companies.

The Group does not hold more than 50% of the voting rights in Eagle
Fund | L.P. (the “Fund”), an exempted limited partnership
established in Cayman Islands. However, the Group’s management
considers that the Group has effective control over the Fund due to
the fact that (1) the activities of the Fund are governed by the
investment committee (the “Investment Committee”) and the Group
has the rights to appoint majority representatives of the Group to
the Investment Committee. The members of the Investment
Committee are appointed and may be removed by the general
partner of the Fund which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group; and (2) the Group obtains significant benefits as it is entitled
to a share of the net realised profits from the Fund as a limited
partner and a general partner. The Group will also earn project
management fees and management fees for the services provided
to the Fund. The Group has determined that it has control and
significant benefits derived from the Fund and accordingly has
consolidated the Fund as a subsidiary notwithstanding it only has a
47% interests.

These subsidiaries were disposed/deregistrated during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

B3 G BB R RE

35. MEAB (&)

Percentage of interest

held by the Company Principal activities
FATMBEGZERIL TEEH
Directly Indirectly

*

ok

&

259

100%

51% 51%

Property investment

Property
development

LS

100% 100%  Property

development

NEERE

100% 100%  Property

development

NEER

3

ZEMBRRINPEKZABEREERT °

i

AEBETHERHASHESRN I 2 EREE
R & £ 4 ¥ Eagle Fund | L.P. ([Fund ) 50% BA
E2RIE AT AEBEEERAELSE
E ¥ Fund B BBIEFIHE - o R (1) FundZ
EERREZER((REZEGNER A
SEERZAREZEEZAEEAZHN
Ko HWEBZEEKEMRFUNdZEBABA(—
MASE2EMBRARNEME LA FUB
B RQASBEESERNDG BEEKRES
FUndEREREBARLERBERBAZFER
FEzZHE - N B IS AFundie 4t 2 iR
BUKERBEEEBRENEEE - AEBEET
HFund B B 1§14 RAEFund BB E KF%
H L EFund & AN B AR - BMEREER
HHAT%HER °

ZEMBRARENHE—_T-NF+ A=
+T—BIEFEARE WM -
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35. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length and
therefore the above list contains only the particulars of the
principal subsidiaries which materially affect the results or
assets of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

36. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

35. M AT 2w (8)
EERAMBHAEMBARNE2TET
RIEGBRITE - WERERERZUA
SEYANAEREANENZEENE

AR -

MEBARNFRMERITERNESES

36. EiERIER

2018 2017

—E-0\E —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

EETR BT T

As at 1 January R—A—H 35,861 31,685
Distribution Ik (12,345) —
Profit for the year F N5 A (6,738) 815
Net exchange difference PEH ZRER (1,723) 3,361
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8 15,055 35,861
The non-controlling interests of subsidiaries that are not 100% FERASEHEE100%E R 2 B AR 2 IE

owned by the Group are considered to be immaterial.

TR MRS TEAX -
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The following transactions with related parties were, in the
opinion of the Directors, carried out in the ordinary course of
business during the year:

BABEA LTS
EERA THRFREBRALTES
RH TN AR EHBIERET

Operating lease charges and

fRHBEEMN 2 HAREYE

management fee in respect of office CIEHEXHEREREE
premises situated in Guangzhou, the (Fff 5% (a))

PRC (note (a))

Rental expense for leasing carparking
spaces situated in Guangzhou, the
PRC (note (b))

Rental income in respect of an office
premise (note (c))

Management fee in respect of properties

for sale (note (d))
Interest expense on unsecured revolving
credit facility (note (€))

MEMRPEEMNZFEM
2 78 & 7 sz (K &£ (o)

FR—ERAEMEZ
i NGO )
FEMEZERE (M)

EEABREXBMEZ
78 (M 5 ()

2018 2017
—F—)\E§ Tt F
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETT BT T
738 839

32 19

596 594

667 702

Notes:

@

A subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy agreement with
a related company, in which the Chairman and an executive
director of the Company have interests, for leasing a number of
premises situated in Guangzhou, the PRC for office purpose.

Total operating lease commitment in respect of the tenancy
agreement is HK$158,000 (2017: HK$657,000).

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, a subsidiary of
the Company entered into tenancy agreements with a related
company, in which a close family member of the Chairman and an
executive director of the Company have interests, for leasing three
(2017: two) carparking spaces situated in Guangzhou, the PRC.

Total operating lease commitment in respect of the tenancy
agreement is HK$16,000 (2017: HK$9,000).

KRR —RMBARE—RBARBEFER
—RNTESRERRZAERRRHE
i MESHEUNPEEMN W EER
REMZE °

T E 3 2 ST ERIE 85 A7 158,000
TL(ZZ—+F : B %657,0000T) °

REBEE_ZT-N\FRZZT—tF+=ZA=+
—BIEFE  ARAR—RHWBEARE—RH
BAR(ARRERZEOBRNITESHS
ELS)FT M E ek - AR &R R B E M
Z=E(=ZF—tF MmE)IFEA -

T & o 2 48 & B AR IE 58 BB 516,000
(=T — & B#9,0007T) °
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

37. BEBALTIZS(E)

Notes: (Continued) MiaE: (88)

©) For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, a subsidiary of © RBE_ZE—N\ER_ZT—+tF+_A=+
the Company entered into a tenancy agreement with a company, in —HIEFE ARl —REBRAFE KA
which the Chairman and her daughters have wholly-owned interest, A(RRARIERERELX R EHEAER)R L
for leasing an office premise in Soundwill Plaza for the period of HEWZ AT —RAFNLA—RHE_ZT—
three years commencing from 1 September 2015 and expiring on NENR=+—HBLAAME%49,538LH &
31 August 2018 at a monthly rental of HK$49,538. On 1 September SHERL—EARAEDE  BH=F - ¥
2018, the subsidiary and related company agreed to extend the —TZ-NFNLA—HB ZWBARKBER
period of three years commencing on 1 September 2018 and ARE#FHRE T/ \FALA—BELER
expiring on 31 August 2021 at monthly rental of HK$50,000. =F EZZFT—FN\A=+—HE®" A

i & 75 #50,0007T °
Total operating lease commitment by the related company in BEARRHERBE K EHERELR
respect of the tenancy agreement is approximately HK$1,600,000 4 5 7 #1,600,000C(ZF — £ F: B
(2017: HK$396,000). 396,0007T) °

(d)  For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, subsidiaries of d REEZZ-N\FRZZ—tF+ZA=+
the Company entered into property management agreements with —BIEFE ARAMNBARE -RKBAR
a related company, in which the Chairman and an executive AERER—EZRTEFHERE ZHEAT
director of the Company have interests, for managing properties for AR ERGE  NERRERLR

== X
sale situated in the PRC. ZRHEEME -

() On 1 May 2017, a related company in which the Chairman and an ©) Eé:?——tgiﬂ)i— B —REAXRRER
executive Director of the Company have interests, has agreed to &—%iﬂﬁ%%?ﬁﬁﬁémZEﬁﬁ’&ﬁjEﬁE-.
provide an unsecured revolving credit facility for amount of MARE—R 2 A BAR R MRS R ER

T R § — , '

HK$150,000,000 to a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group with BURRA R B H150,000,0007 - 2IHA A
maturity date on 30 April 2018. On 1 May 2018, the subsidiary and ZFN\FEA=FTRA -R=F-N\FHEA
related company have agreed to extend the maturity date to 30 —H & WEQE&%@%EEE? 14 2 4
April 2019 and revised the interest rate to prime lending rate for HERE-F-NAFMNA=FA LKFA

S Ik =T S TR 8 = = B Rl &
loans in Hong Kong dollars from time to time less 2.0% per annum. %1'% Al ir E%% /ﬁ BRHEE %1‘3 A=
There was no interest expenses arising from this facility during both 2.0 ° %K E n'iﬂl éj 1 R 1 4F Fl‘% I & %%ﬂ
years as the unsecured revolving credit facilities were not utilised. BRI - Il Ty B T RR SRR A

REFHHA o

Key management personnel compensation: FEEEABTM:

2018 2017

—F—-N\E —E—tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

EETRT BT T

Basic salaries and other benefits EAXFH e LHMERN 44,510 64,831
Pension costs — defined contribution RRE KA — EREHK

plans &l 66 90

44,576 64,921
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38. ASSETS CLASSIFIED ASHELD FORSALE 38. N AZEZSE

The assets and liabilities related to Lucky Way Holdings
Investment Limited (“Lucky Way”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, have been presented as held for sale following
the signing of a sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party to dispose of Lucky Way on 19 July
2018 with a cash consideration of HK$467,635,000. Lucky
Way is an investment holding company and holds the entire
issued share capital of a subsidiary which in turn holds a
property comprises a work site and a tenement building
located in Hong Kong (collectively the “Lucky Way Group”). As
at 31 December 2018, the Group received deposits of
HK$55,353,000 from the purchasers and included in “trade
and other payable” line item.

The disposal of Lucky Way Group is expected to complete in
May 2019.

In accordance with HKFRS 5, the assets relating to the Lucky
Way Group have been classified as held for sale in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The disposal does
not constitute a discontinued operation as it does not
represent a major line of business or geographical area of
operation.

RZE-—N\FLtA+NAEBIFE=F%
EBEE NI & KRB 514676350007
HEAEE2EHBARRBAEEIEER
BARl((BAD%  BFEEBREZEERERE
B2V ARFE BRARETERAR &
E—HWBARI 2 HMEEITRA M
MEBARRZEERS —EUE ZWELS
F—ETHE—iEEE(REEAEEE]) -
R-BE-NFE+-_A=+—B ~EERE
75 U 2|37 4 7 #55,353,0007T © Wit AR
SREMEMNFKEBEIERF -

w|AL

Ji)

BHR-_ZE-NFRAALETK -

RIFEVBHREERESS BHEEAS
BrEECRNEERBRARDIBERET
o WHEYHFTEXEBRIELEME
Ft W T ERERIERE ZER

2018

—E-N\F

HK$’000

BET T

Investment properties "EYHE 420,000
Total assets classified as held for sale NERFECREE 420,000
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On 2 August 2018, the Group entered into an agreement
to dispose of the entire equity interest in a wholly-owned
subsidiary, namely Real Benefit Group Limited (“Real
Benefit”), to an independent third party at an aggregate
cash consideration of HK$530,100,000. Real Benefit is
an investment holding company which in turn held a
building situated in Hong Kong (collectively the “Real
Benefit Group”). The disposal of Real Benefit Group was
completed on 14 September 2018. The net assets of
subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as follows:
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R-ZZE—NENA-H AEEZL
MER— BB E=FHEHB AR
Real Benefit Group Limited ([Real
Benefit)) 2 2 %1 - MBS REAH
7 #530,100,0007T ° Real Benefit &
WEERAR  FEMREBZ—IE
12 F (4578 [Real Benefit2 E ) - Real
BenefitEE B 2 HEER =_Z—/\F 1L
A+HBZERK - HEBARKHERH
ZFEEMT:

HK$'000
ST
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Properties held for sale HEME 288,450
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FET R R M B AR FRIE (290,368)
(1,918)
Loan assignment Bz 290,368
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of FRELENBARZEERAXY
subsidiaries 5,838
Gain on disposal of Real Benefit it & Real Benefit 2 J 25 235,812
530,100
Total consideration BmR(E
— satisfied by cash — LR X 530,100
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Real i ¥ Real Benefit &£ B B E £ 2 I £ A
Benefit Group: R
Consideration received BRRE 530,100
Direct expenses HEAX (6,838)

524,262
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On 7 June 2017, the Group entered into an agreement to (b)
dispose of the entire equity interest in a wholly-owned
subsidiary, namely Honest Merit International Group
Limited (“Honest Merit”), to an independent third party at
an aggregate cash consideration of HK$456,061,000.
Honest Merit is an investment holding company which in

turn held a building situated in Hong Kong (collectively
the “Honest Merit Group”). The disposal of Honest Merit

Group was completed on 6 July 2017. The net assets of

R=F—+tF~ALH AEEFT
A —EZBLE=HHEEEEN
J8 A B) 3 FI B &= B B PR A 7l (Honest
Merit International Group Limited) ([ 5
Mz 2 E g - BEERERBE
456,061,0007T ° #H F| BT EZERKR A
A BAEEBUREBZEF (5B
[HANEER]D) HAIEEBZHEER
“E—tFEANHEK - fIBAF

subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as follows: REHEBBHZFEENT
HK$'000
ST
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment properties (note) ®EY (M) 438,000
Deposits paid BENES 414
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FEASS B Z BT B A /) FE (301,520)
136,894
Loan assignment B 301,520
Direct expenses in relation to disposal EBETENRBRARZEERY
of subsidiaries 67,814
Loss on disposal of Honest Merit HEB A 2 B8 (50,167)
456,061
Total consideration HRE
— satisfied by cash — R & T 456,061
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of HEHFEERELE 2
Honest Merit Group: RemAFRE:
Consideration received B E 456,061
Direct expenses BEERY (67,814)
388,247

Note: The fair value gain of HK$136,788,000 is recorded on this

property due to the transfer from properties for sale
amounting to HK$301,212,000 to investment properties
amounting to HK$438,000,000 during the year ended 31

December 2017.

M #2=_F—tF+=-_A=1+—HItHF
& R A B ’E301,212,0007T 2 17
E ) % 8 = & 20% #5438,000,000
TZREME  BAEZMESEAT
1B 4k 25 7% #136,788,0007T °
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@)

In January 2018, the Group acquired 100% equity
interest in Gigantic Power Limited for a cash
consideration of HK$151,524,000 from an independent
third party. The acquisition was made as part of the
Group’s strategy to invest in investment properties.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
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@ RZZE—N\F—A—8 &~x&EBRF—
% B 3 8B = 75 B8 Gigantic Power
Limited Z100% I # - IR & KB &/
#151,524,0007T ° LLIEW BT AL E
WEREMEZ R — 3D -

ERSTFHRBZA#MNEERAR

acquired in the transaction are as follows: ZNFEWT:

HK$’000

ok e

Investment properties "EWHE 152,023
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H A fE W GkIR 9

Tax recoverable A Y Bl F IR 141
Trade and other payables 5 N Hqth fE T FRIE (649)
Net assets HEE 151,524
Total consideration satisfied by cash LIRS EMNZBRE 151,524
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In January 2018, the Group also acquired 100% equity ) RZZE—N\F—A—H X&5EIMH
interest in Luck Power (Hong Kong) Limited and Luck B — &L F = 75 Y B Luck Power
Power Development Limited for an aggregated cash (Hong Kong) Limited } Luck Power
consideration of HK$62,599,000 from another Development Limited 2 100% [% #
independent third party. The acquisition was made as #I5 ¢ (E /B 162,599,0007T ° It
part of the Group’s strategy to expand in mini-storage HRB I ASEERAMTE R LH
business. W—&n o
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities EZRSPWE2AIHMNEE R AR
acquired in the transactions are as follows: ZRFEIAT
HK$’000
BT
Investment properties "EME 62,029
Trade and other receivables 5 I Hfth fE W 5 IE 615
Tax recoverable G qER 25
Trade and other payables B 5 & EAth B FRIE (46)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEAE (24)
Net assets FEE 62,599
Total consideration satisfied by cash WS ER 2 BRE 62,599
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

41.

41.1 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by

category

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities as recognised at the reporting dates are

categorised as follows:
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IHBEIA

M FEHNE S ZHBEERABRR
=
AEEMHEERBRRREAH
ERZEMEDELT

2018 2017
—E—N\EF —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT ok
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets at amortised cost K5 K A58 2 B1 75 & &
(2017 Loans and receivables —E—+F EHREK
at amortised cost) I - IR )
— Trade receivables, net — B FEWEIE  FEE 22,035 19,676
— Other receivables and deposits,  — Efth fEUL 18 & 5T4& -
net HER 17,660 18,927
— Loan receivables — ERERK 37,809 38,351
— Bank deposits at escrow —RAERPZRITER
account - 2,231
— Restricted bank deposits — ZRHIRITFR 74,568 57,993
— Short-term bank deposits — REIRITEX 575,000 480,055
— Cash and cash equivalents —RekReEEYD 186,238 666,895
Financial assets at FVTPL (2017 BEAFEFAEZ ZHE
Structured bank deposits at BE(CTZ—tF - &#BH
FVTPL) WITTFEH - BAFERA
B 92,443 106,559
1,005,753 1,390,687
Financial liabilities B aRE
At amortised cost b 3l
— Trade payables — B ENFE (20,977) (24,035)
— Accrued expenses and — B ERREMENRE
other payables (362,678) (809,170)
— Borrowings, secured — B8 BHEM (1,562,788) (1,528,120)
(1,946,443) (1,861,325)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities carried at amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair values as at reporting date.

RSB - AR B KA IR
ZHMBEERBBZRAEBEEAYF
BEYBEAZR -
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The Group is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk (foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk) in the normal course of business.
However, the Directors meet periodically to analyse and
formulate measures to manage the Group’s exposure to
the market risk.

Generally, the Group introduces conservative strategies
on its risk management. As the Group’s exposure to the
market risk is kept to a minimum level, the Group has not
used any derivatives and other instruments for hedging
purposes. The Group does not hold or issue derivative
financial instruments for trading purposes. The most
significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed
to are described below.

(a) Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk on its variable-rate interest bearing
borrowings, loan receivables, bank deposits at
escrow account, restricted bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents. The Group is also
exposed to fair value interest rate risk on fixed-rate
short-term bank deposits. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the Group closely monitors its loan
portfolio and compares the interest rates under
loan agreements with existing banks against new
offers on borrowing rates from different banks in
the loan re-financing and negotiation process.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR arising
from the Group’s variable interest rate instruments.

AEERBEEEBAZEERR R
BE T E R &SRR OMNER K
A R S A AR R R) o AT -
EETHARgZ 0T RHIE R RN
ERAKEMSHERAR

—RmE  ARERERREESIA
RT KRS - HRAKBATS SRR
RN &EKE - MAKREY ERA
ERTETAREMTAES P2
Ao REBI BB RBEITITERF
TAEERSZ - AKBMAX Z&
EXUHRABREINDAT -

(a) %5 /E g

0 FEEE
MEERERF TR ZRAFE
SR RERNT S REBM
HIREBZERARE - NEE
HEEFEMEE  BKRERK-
REERFZRITEFR  XR
HIRTEFARRE RS
BYMESRESRENRER
AREBLE S EHRITER
mEHAFENERRR - NE
) 3R B 3 ) SRR HUR o A
M- AEEZEEREERE
B UYEEXRBRENERB
B BBBRTHAATZER
ek < B E M R EAFRITER
W HEEENRIELLR -

AEBZRERENREARE
EETFRARKEFHHNET
BEELZEBREFERD -
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(@
()

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The policies to manage interest rate risk have been
followed by the Group since prior year are
considered to be effective.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the reporting date and had been
applied to variable-rate financial instruments at that
date. 25 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

The management considered that the Group’s
exposure to future cash flow risk on variable-rate
cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank
deposits and bank deposits at escrow account as
a result of the changes of market interest rate is
insignificant and thus they are not included in the
sensitivity analysis.

At at 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a
general increase of 25 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variable held constant, would
decrease the Group’s profit after tax and decrease
the retained profits by approximately
HK$3,183,000 (2017: HK$3,110,000). There is no
impact on other components of consolidated
equity in response to the general increase in
interest rates. A decrease of 25 basis points in
interest rate would have had the equal but
opposite effect on the above financial instruments
to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all
other variables remain constant. The sensitivity
results are mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate loan
receivables and borrowings.

(a
(i)
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Market risk (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Group mainly operates and invests in
Hong Kong and the PRC. No foreign currency risk
has been identified for the financial instruments as
they were denominated in the same currency as
the functional currencies of the group entities to
which these transactions relate.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk arising
from changes in fair value of structure bank
deposits which carried at FVTPL.

No sensitivity analysis an other price risk is
presented for the financial assets at FVTPL as the
Directors consider a reasonable possible change
to the fair value of the financial assets at FVTPL will
not have a significant effect to the Group’s profit or
loss.

(a
(i)

(i)

5 A IV R M SR

45 g ()

SN

SN e\ i 15 ph 170 BEE =R B B A By
MBTAZAFEIAKRE
MEKBZRAR AERETXE
REERTELERKE -
RUMBTAEEKEUREH
RHZAEEER LT
AR - BRI R SN LR o

A 18 AR

A B EE AT EHA B35
B2 EBMRTER Y ATE
2 8) 7 [ 0 A (R AR LR o

HREFRR/EAFEFAR
HmHBEEI A FEZAE
AR T B AEEIRRE
EEAFE ARYERZRA
FEFABZZHBEEERT
HpEEERZEREIN
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(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2018, other than those
financial assets whose carrying amounts best
represent the maximum exposure to credit risk,
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
arising from the amount of financial guarantees
provided by the Group is disclosed in note 33.

Trade receivables

Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis. The Group assess the potential
customer’s credit quality customer at new
customer acceptance. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model) on trade
receivables individually.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Review of past due receivables are
conducted by the Group bi-weekly. Normally,
other than those property leasing rental
receivables which are secured by rental deposits,
the Group does not obtain collateral from other
customers.

(b)
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Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Loan receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Directors
have delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, interest rate offered
to customers and collaterals received. Monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under 12-month ECL model upon
application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model)
on balances individually.

The Directors estimate the estimated loss rates of
loan receivables based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtors
as well as the fair value of the collateral pledged by
the customers to the loan receivables. Based on
assessment by the Directors, the loss given default
is low in view of the fair value of the collaterals and
the Directors considers the 12-month ECL for loan
receivables is insignificant.

Other receivables and deposits

Management of the Group makes periodic
collective assessment as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables and deposits based on historical
settlement records, past experience, and also
available reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information starting from 1 January 2018.
The management of the Group believes that there
is no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding balance of other receivables and
deposits.

(b)

5 A IV R M SR
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(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Bank deposits at escrow account, restricted bank
deposits, short-term bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents

The credit risk on bank deposits at escrow
account, restricted bank deposits, short-term
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents of
the Group is limited because the counterparties
are banks and financial institutions with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies and no history of default in the past. No
loss allowance provision for bank deposits at
escrow account, restricted bank deposits, short-
term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents was recognised upon application of
HKFRS 9. The Group has limited exposure to any
single financial institution.

Other than structured bank deposits with a bank,
the Group does not have any significant
concentration of credit risk.

(b)
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REBREEFARBLR TS
EEFRZRITREBEE -
BEYEEANLE - BRAEE
P EERIFEIRIR - BEERL
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(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment (b)

(Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading
assessment comprises the following categories:

Internal credit

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%o T B R R T

For the year ended 31 December 2018 8l 2 = F —/\iF +=H=+—HI  F &

155 /E g R 5 (5 7F 15 ()

AEE 2 NEME & R 4RI R
e AT BRI A B :

Other financial

rating Description Trade receivables assets/other items
HithMA BB EE Hith
MEBEETFR ESEWRIE I5H
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk  Lifetime ECL — not 12-months ECL
default and does not have any  credit-impaired
past-due amounts
1K L B2 HFFzENERRRE IR CRAPRHAEEEERE 12ERESMEEEIE
E{al %8 B 3018 — EBEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after  Lifetime ECL — not 12-months ECL
due dates but usually settle credit-impaired
after due date
BERzE BEHALELINBRAZEN CAREREEEE 1REABBEEER
BETEIPEEEE — BEERE
Doubtful There have been significant Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL — not
increase in credit risk since credit-impaired credit-impaired
initial recognition through
information developed
internally or external
resources
R ER FRANAELESINBRIRE CRRAEREEFE EHAREHEEEBR
¥ EERBREVSERA — BEEHRE — BEERE
REBEE N
Loss There is evidence indicating the Lifetime ECL — credit-  Lifetime ECL — credit-
asset is credit-impaired impaired impaired
&8 ERBEREELRGEERE CAPREHEEEE CAHREHREEER
—BEERE — BEERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that Amount is written off Amount is written off
the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
6! ERBEEREBABAREY MHEFIE g sRR

BNE BEAKELTEER
AU [El 2 HR
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

41.2 Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

M. HFEITRE)
4.2 BEEGEEEERBE(E)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

(b) 15E/ERRHEFE (&)

TRANAEEARZAYIE
EERFBIUBEEZREE

ECL assessment: [ B2 etk
Gross
External credit Internal credit 12-month or carrying
rating rating lifetime ECL amount
1218 A& AETE
= 1% 27 R = 5
MBS FER P B 15 B AT 4R EEER B
Note HK$'000
Hi ot BT T
Financial assets IR AR AT AR Z A 75
at amortised costs aE
Trade receivables B 5 & Wk E 21 N/A Note 3 Liftime ECL 22,035
T i A Ff 53 ERAMESREERES
Loan receivables FEWE 3K 21 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 37,809
I i 1E &R 12EAEHEEREE
Restricted bank deposits R &I ERITIF K 24 A3-AT N/A 12-month ECL 69,755
TiE A 12EREHEERE
B1-Baal N/A 12-month ECL 4,813
i 128 AFEHEEEE
74,568
Short-term bank deposits BHERITER 24 Aa3-Aal N/A 12-month ECL 325,000
i A 12EREHEERE
A3-A1 N/A 12-month ECL 250,000
TiE A 1R2EAEHEERE
575,000
Cash and cash equivalents RekBHeEEY 24 Aa3-Aal N/A 12-month ECL 47,200
T i 12EAEHEEREE
A3-A1 N/A 12-month ECL 131,416
TiE A 12EREHEERE
B1-Baal N/A 12-month ECL 7,622
7 i 12EAFEHEEEE
186,238
Othe receivables and deposits H b JE YR IE R ET& N/A Note 1 12-month ECL 17,660
iE A B 51 12EAEHEEEE
Other items HieIEE
Financial guarantee contracts MBERELOMIE2) 33 NA Low risk 12-month ECL 337,389
(Note 2) T i £ & B 12@AEHEEEE
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(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

For the purposes of internal credit risk management,
the Group uses past due information to assess
whether credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition.

(b)

155 /E g R 5 (5 7F 15 ()

=

—

RETABEERRER - K
SEERBREHFEHERER
REVLSERIARE BEER
oo e

Not past due/

no fixed
repayment
Past due terms Total
3R
B EERH @zt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

EETT BT EETRT

Other receivables and deposits

Hit R SRR

— 17,660 17,660

For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying
amount represents the maximum amount the Group
has guaranteed under the respective contracts. The
fair values of the purchasers’ properties are higher
than the Group’s guaranteed amount to the banks,
and thus the Directors considered the loss given
default in the financial guarantee contracts is low and
the 12-month ECL on financial guarantee contracts
is insignificant.

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the
simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group assessed the
ECL on trade receivables individually on each
debtor.

RUBERAOME - REZ
ERAKEREERAOER
ZEREEE - BAMEZAF
EERAEERRITIELZE
REE - AL EERBUBHER
BHZENBRERE Mt
BRERAENZ12EAFHEE
BRI TERX -

BESEBHEAR S A%E
1 PR P05 90 55 2 B B0
B2 L% - B R
EERRT BERRE - A%
e S A B SR
T 2 A 5 {2 RS A 1T (B 5
#F i«
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(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The estimated loss rate of each debtor is
estimated based on historical observed default
rates over the expected life of the debtors and are
adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In the opinion of the Directors, the lifetime ECL on
trade receivables are considered insignificant.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime
ECL that has been recognised for trade
receivables under the simplified approach.

(b)
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155 /E g R 5 (5 7F 15 ()

BEEBAZEBREDRE
BEHAREFFHRAZBED
BRENREN L X E
FNHTBERERAKB WA
MESHAEEERHELRE -

E=RA HIRUREBEZRE
RMEREEEBRRE AL
EX-

TRINFREBIETARES
FE W R IR e 58 2 2 A B TR S

Lifetime ECL (credit-

impaired)
EFRYEREEEE
(RiEE
BE)
HK$’000
EETR
As at 31 December 2017 under HKAS 39 RZF—EF+ZA=1—
AR IR E 5 & 5 A
£395% 765
Changes due to financial instruments N—A—BERZTHL
recognised as at 1 January: Aimet
— Write-offs — M8 (521)
As at 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F+ZA=+—H 244
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(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(c)

(Continued)

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or when the trade receivables are
over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier.
The Group has taken legal action against the
debtors to recover the amount due and none of
the trade receivables that have been written off is
subject to enforcement activities.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to
liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade
payables, accrued expenses and other payables
and borrowings, and also in respect of its cash
flow management. The Group’s objective is to
ensure adequate funds to meet commitments
associated with its financial liabilities. Cash flows
are closely monitored on an ongoing basis. The
Group will raise funds from the realisation of its
assets if required. The Directors are satisfied that
the Group will be able to meet in full its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future.

(b)

(c)

5 A IV R M SR

155 /E g R 5 (5 7F 15 ()

MBEERBREBABARE
s RE B |mERAIKRE 5
2 (PIInEBHAD ETIRRIAE
ABERFF)  HEHEWFIA
ERRNBAME ARFHLE
RE) - AEE R E 5 E W
R - AEE S HEBEAK
HUER1TE) - LABRIBIHAFRIA -
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BREEUERAERSRESE
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
41.2 Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables detail the remaining
contractual maturities at the reporting date of the
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay. Specifically, for term loans
which contain a repayment on demand clause
which can be exercised at the banks’ sole
discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow
based on the earliest time band in which the entity
can be required to pay, that is if the lenders were
to invoke their unconditional rights to call the loans
with immediate effect.
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M. HBIRE)
M2 MEEAREEEERBE(E)

(c)

A=A N AC Y
TRFANAEB 2 HBRER
WE B RSO HFS
TRBEAENARFTRRESTE (B
ERAAOF =R (I AFEF
R)ERBEBRZMEFELZ
FENF) RA KB AL AN
ZRPAHGE - LERE 5
BEARRTEERBITEZ
BEREEGERZERERM
5 AR EERAES
HEBIREEN AN ESER
AERARAXNZRFHR
BEZRERL -

31 December 2018

Maturity analysis — Undiscounted cash flows
—2-\f+ZH=+-H
HPERA T -KFHASRE

Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flow on demand 5years

SRR
RHeERg — R —£NE
AR EE BE REXE EIFEUR
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Trade payables BHENHIE 20,977 20,977 20,977 -
Accrued expenses and other payables BB AR EMENTKIE 362,678 362,678 362,678 -
Rental deposits received EleEe 173,362 173,362 97,029 76,333
Bank loans RITER 1,562,788 1,605,586 1,087,667 517,919
Financial guarantee contracts BBEREN - 337,389 337,389 -
2,119,805 2,499,992 1,905,740 594,252
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. BB ITARE)

41.2 Financial risk management objectives and M2 BERABEEBERBE(E)
policies (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) EEE2EE&E)

31 December 2017
Maturity analysis — Undiscounted cash flows
“E—+E+ZA=1+—-H
BRI - AT BB GRS

Total More than

contractual Within 1 year but

Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than

amount cash flow on demand 5 years
BRRFER

Beng —FAR —FLE

REE ok REXE  EREFUR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT

Trade payables BHENHE 24,035 24,035 24,035 -
Accrued expenses and other payables B BRREMENTE 309,170 309,170 309,170 -
Rental deposits received Elfisize 164,361 164,361 102,551 61,810
Bank loans, secured, subject to BITER BER-

repayment on demand clause MEREREERER 1,528,120 1,528,120 1,528,120 -
Financial guarantee contracts HBEREHN - 309,431 309,431 -

2,025,686 2,335,117 2,273,307 61,810
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(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table set out below summarises the maturity
analysis of the bank loans with a repayment on
demand clause amounting to HK$696,700,000
(2017: HK$1,528,120,000) based on agreed
scheduled repayments set out in the loan
agreements. The amounts include interest
payments computed using contractual rates. As a
result, these amounts were greater than the
amounts disclosed in the “within 1 year or on
demand” time band in the maturity analysis shown
above. Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the Directors do not consider that it is
probable that the banks will exercise its discretion
to demand immediate repayment. The Directors
believe that such terms will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in their loan agreements.
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REEREE ()

TRE R SR EREEKRR
2 $R17E 5B #696,700,0007T
(ZZ—+ 4 : #1,528,120,000
TDIRER RSB EEEE
REM Z B BB R DT - %25
SHEBRERANNETEZF
B Al ZF28aR
EXFREBER AR —F
A Tk FA S B | B T 6 B P 4 BB
ZBF c ERAKE 2B AR
g EERABRITTIARABET
FERIEEEZRAFER &
EHE ZSEHERKEE
R ATE B EEKEEE
ﬁ °

(c)

Maturity analysis — Bank loans subject to a repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayment dates

REFEEXRBMELZANBERIN -HERRKRERRRZRTER

More than More than

Total 1 year, 2years,

contractual Within but not but not

Carrying undiscounted 1 year or exceeding exceeding

amount cash flow on demand 2years 5years

BHRIH —Ehg —£lE WEUL

fREE ReREEH REXE EFRBmE EFRBLE

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000

BRI ERTT EETL BRI ERTT
As at 31 December N \F

2018 +ZR=1+—H 696,700 714,442 561,493 152,949 -
As at 31 December RZZ—+F

2017 +ZRA=+—-H 1,528,120 1,570,362 504,976 913,265 152,121
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42. RECONCILIATION OF ASSETS/LIABILITIES
RELATING TO FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s assets/
liabilities relating to financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes which represents net debt as presented in
Note 43. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in

42.

HMETHAMZEE AR
AR

TRAFAEBRBEFDAMIAE/
BERY  SEASRIERSEEY AN
HA3RIZ R ES - MEAEDEL AR
HBEHARKEEEEA RS RERN
SEAMATHERZASREZRLR

the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash £ o
flows from financing activities.
Structured Amount due
bank to non-
deposits/ controlling
Cash and Financial Amount  shareholders
Restricted Short-term cash assets at due to of
bank deposit bank deposit quival FVTPL  shareholders subsidiaries Borrowings Total
g d
RITER/
BAFEA ERHEAT
ZRRH o] RER BRZUE k2R
RITHER RITHER BeEEY AE BRRERE RERE BE @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
As at 1 January 2017 RZEB—+%—-A—-H (67,947) (988,227) (536,201) - - - 1,694,220 101,845
Cash flow, net RemEERE 9,954 508,172 (129,200 (106,559) (339,970) - (191,603) (249,206)
Other non-cash changes: HkReE%:
Finance costs recognised { - - - - - - 25,503 25,503
Dividends declared EERKRS - - - - 339,970 - - 339,970
Foreign exchange SNERE
adjustments - - (1,494) - - - - (1,494)
As at 31 December 2017 RZB—+F
+=B=t-H° (57993) (480,055) (666.895) (106,559) - - 1,628,120 216,618
Cash flow, net REeNEFH (16,575) (94,945) 478,546 14,116 (56,662) (12,345) (3,147) 308,988
Other non-cash changes: HtvEBe#
Finance costs recognised BRAREAKK - - - - - - 37,815 37,815
Dividends declared BERKRS - - - - 56,662 - - 56,662
Foreign exchange SNERE
adjustments - - 2,11 - - - - 2,11
Distribution to non-controling 7k T i B 2 &
shareholders of FRBRRE
subsidiaries - - - - - 12,345 - 12,345
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+=ZA=+-R (74,568) (575,000) (186,238) (92,443) - - 1,562,788 634,539
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43. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for its shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the current year.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of debt to equity ratio,
which is net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated
as the sum of the Group’s borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents and other bank deposits as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Total capital is
calculated as total equity, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group aims to maintain the
debt to equity ratio at a manageable level.
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EXpEEEE
AREARER Y TEABAREREE
BEGE 2 B ARRRR D
B A 0 E IR GRS -

A B R BB TSR R A AR
B OHEERRY - ARBARRES
2R - A A R R OR B 2 AR
R R A AR THR - RAEER
Wm A HERIEFELED -

AEENAaBES s XEEBNEE
BRUABER)ERER « FEBALE YT
BIRAKAREBEE 2 BFRIRE RIR
SEBYREMBITERGE - BERU
HEMBRRARIAI R ERBEESE - K
SEETEHF AR ERLEERAIER 2
K o

2018 2017

—E-N\F ZE—tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BETRT AT T

Borrowings BE 1,562,788 1,528,120

— Financial assets at FVTPL/structured — AT EFABZ 2T

bank deposits BE/TEEMRITER (92,443) (106,559)

— Restricted bank deposits — ZRBIERITF R (74,568) (57,993)

— Short-term bank deposits — FHHIRITER (575,000) (480,055)

— Cash and cash equivalents - ReRREeEED (186,238) (666,395)
Net debt BER 634,539 216,618
Total equity EimEE 20,456,219 19,893,948
Net debt to equity ratio FEEYENSILE 0.031:1 0.011:1
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The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2011
Share Option Scheme”) at the annual general meeting held on
19 May 2011 (the “2011 AGM”).

The principal terms of the 2011 Share Option Scheme are set
out as follows:

The purpose of this scheme is to encourage the participants to
perform their best in achieving the goals of the Company and
at the same time allow the participants to enjoy the results of
the Company attained through their efforts and contributions.

Eligible participants of the 2011 Share Option Scheme includes
(i) any full time employee and director (any existing or proposed
executive or non-executive directors) of the Group or any
member of the Group and any part-time employee with weekly
working hours of 10 hours or above of the Group; (i) any
advisor, consultants or agent to the Group; any provider of
goods and/or services to the Group; or any other person who,
at the sole discretion of the Board, has contributed or may
contribute to the Group; and (iii) any trustee of any trust
(whether family or discretionary) whose beneficiaries or objects
include any employee or business association of the Group.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the 2011
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company shall not exceed 10% of the total number of
shares in issue as at the adoption date of the 2011 Share
Option Scheme provided that the share options lapsed will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating such 10% limit.

At the 2011 AGM, the said 10% limit of number of shares
available for issue was 25,091,413 shares.

ARBRZB——FHEATABETZR
RBFRG(ZE——FRIRBERG) L
Rz B8 (—F—— FRRER
£

T —FREREE 2 EEHRRET W
T

ZETBEEE B2 BEBHERAR TE
B AREL2EENERERNR/ALR
EHERBIZ AR -

- FBEREAECAER2EER
BOAEELAEBERMKERR ZEM
EREENES (ERREHERZAITH
FATES) URAKEERESETE
N A B2 FREBE R (i) A S B TR
EXEREIRE RAAKERHED
E/ERBZAEFEER NEESE2E
HERREERAEEAREEFELREMZ
EAIEM AL - R (i) E @S FE (KR 2H)
ZEFEN ﬁﬁE%Zu{Z*/\/\‘JZ;T%“%
AEEZEMEEXEHHEA

BETEZS —— FERETERATQF
E A E b BE AR T 2108 T/ 2 B BB AR
M FETZRMDES  TREBARE
W ——FEREFS ZABEETRMD
BB 210% @  BERRZBERESTHE
FEZ10% EFRIAR o

RZE——FRFRAFRSE  Eill10% L
BR A ¥ 2 17 2 f% 19 Bk B 525,091,4130% A%

1/\ ®
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Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the Company may
obtain a fresh approval from its shareholder in general meeting
to refresh the above mentioned 10% limit. In such event, the
total number of shares in respect of which share options may
be granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of
such approval provided that share options previously granted
under the 2011 Share Option Scheme (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised share options) will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating such 10% limit.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share option granted and yet to be
granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30%
(or such other higher percentages as may be allowed under
the Listing Rules) of the total number of shares in issue from
time to time.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of shares
available for issue under the 2011 Share Option Scheme was
14,335,413 representing approximately 5.06% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

Unless separately approved by the shareholders of the
Company at a general meeting with the particular Participant
(as defined in the 2011 Share Option Scheme) and his or her
associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) abstaining from
voting, the total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each Participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12
months period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares in issue.
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44. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE

COMPENSATION (Continued)

Period to take up share options and minimum
period to hold before exercise

Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the period which the
shares must be taken up under a share option and the
minimum period, if any, for which a share option must be held
before it can be exercised are to be decided by the Directors
upon granting the relevant share options. Details of such
information (if any) relating to the outstanding share options are
set out below.

Amount payable to take up share options and time
to accept offer

Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, an offer for the granting
of share options shall be accepted within 21 days from the
offer date and by way of payment of consideration of HK$1.00.

Exercise price

Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the exercise price shall
be a price determined by the board of directors and shall be at
least the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the offer date;

(i) a price being the average of the closing prices of the
shares as quoted in the Stock Exchange for the 5 trading

days immediately preceding the offer date; and

(i)~ the nominal value of the shares.

4. U BEREZESHMNE)

o R IR AR MEIE TR 2 S BR R AT (Al
2 B 58 5 R IR AR B PR

RE-_F——FREKENS RBERE
ATBRPZERRITEBRENLAFE
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HAER < BRERIRTE - BRRKRITEZ
BREsZSEN(NE) 2FBEHNTX -

WEEBREZEMRERENENZ
B e

RIE-T——FRBREFS  RHOBRE
ZENBAEEHNBR T —RANRZME
B1.00TTREBEZ 7T A ZMA -
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The 2011 Share Option Scheme has a life of 10 years from its

adoption date (i.e. 19 May 2011).

On 3 January 2013 (the “Grant Date”), 5,196,000 share options
(the “Share Options”) to subscribe for up to a total of 5,196,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company were
granted to certain eligible individuals, including executive
directors, under 2011 Share Option Scheme. The exercise
price of the Share Options is HK$15.76 per share and the

vesting schedule of the Share Options are as follows:

(@  50% of the options can be exercised at any time after first

anniversary of the Grant Date;

(b)  25% of the options can be exercised at any time after

second anniversary of the Grant Date; and

(0 The remaining 25% of the Options can be exercised at

any time after third anniversary of the Grant Date.

The fair value of the Share Options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2013 under 2011 Share Option Scheme
determined at the Grant Date using Trinomial Option Pricing

Model was HK$23,610,000.

No Share Options were exercised during the year ended 31

December 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, all Share Options

were lapsed.
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